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NOTICE 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Twentieth (20th) Annual General Meeting of Members of IFCI 
Factors Limited will be held on Tuesday, 8th day of September, 2015 at 11:00 a.m. at IFCI 
Tower, 10th Floor, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019, to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the Financial 

Year ended March 31, 2015, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon by 

passing, if deemed fit, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT the Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2015 including Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015 and the Statement of 

Profit & Loss of the Company for the year ended on that date, together with Reports of 

Board of Directors and Auditors and comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

thereon under the provisions of Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 as presented to 

the meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

  
2. To consider and fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2015-16 as appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) 
by passing, if deemed fit, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(5), 142 and all other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for 

the time being in force), the Board / Audit Committee of Directors of the Company, be and 

is hereby, authorized to decide and fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditor(s) of the 

Company as appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the Financial 

Year 2015-16, as may be deemed fit." 

 
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Malay Mukherjee, who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
 
 



“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay (DIN: 07114150) who was appointed by the 

Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from March 12, 2015 

under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”),the Rules made thereunder, 

whose term of office expires at the 20th Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the 

Company has received a notice in writing from a Member proposing the candidature of          

Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay for the office of Director be and is hereby appointed as a Director 

of the Company.” 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with 

Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, 

Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay, who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of 

independence under Section 149(6) of the Act, and who is eligible for appointment as an 

Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company 

to hold office for a term of 3 (three)  years with effect from March 12, 2015.” 

 

5. To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, (including any statutory 
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) (“the Act”) and Rules made 
thereunder re-appointment of Mr.Bikash Kanti Roy (DIN: 02171876), as the Managing Director 
of the Company alongwith the following remuneration paid to him during his tenure as 
Managing Director of the Company from March 24, 2015 to August 9, 2015 be and is hereby 
approved / ratified : 
 
Basic Salary: Rs.47,600/- per month in the pay scale of 42,300-1300-(3)-46200-1400 (3) 
50,400-1600(1)-52000 (8 years). 
 

Perquisites and Allowances: As per the letters bearing reference no. HR./139/2014-030406 

dated March 31, 2014 & IFC/SAD/IFL/2014-15-150312086 dated March 12, 2015 received from 

IFCI Limited, holding company and as per the service rules applicable to the employees of IFCI 

Limited deputed/nominated as Directors on the Board of its subsidiaries, subject to the limits 

under applicable laws.” 

 

6. To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution : 

 

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Satbir Singh (DIN : 06887978), who was appointed as an Additional 

Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from August 10, 2015 in terms of 

Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company and whose 

term of office expires at the Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has 



received a notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, 

be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation.”  

 

7. To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and any other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the rules made there under 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 

read with Schedule V to the Act and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the 

approval Central Government or other Government authority or agency or board, if any, the 

approval of the shareholders  of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Satbir 

Singh (DIN : 06887978) as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 1 (one) year with 

effect from August 10, 2015 at the following remuneration : 

  
Basic Salary: Rs. 46,150/- per month in the pay scale of 39850-1200(2)-42250-1300(3)-46150(6 
years) 
 
Perquisites and Allowances: As per the letters bearing reference no. IFCI/S&AD/IFL/2015-

150807396 & HR.139/2015-070801 both dated August 7, 2015 received from IFCI Limited, 

holding company and as per the service rules applicable to the employees of IFCI Limited 

deputed/nominated as Directors on the Board of its subsidiaries, including any variation thereof, 

subject to the limits under applicable laws. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year the Company has no profits or 

inadequate profits then aforesaid remuneration shall be paid as minimum remuneration in 

compliance with Schedule V of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 

thereof for the time being in force). 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee, 

Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer thereof be and are hereby severally authorized 

to do all such acts, deeds and things as in its absolute discretion it may deem necessary, 

expedient or desirable to settle any question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto in order 

to give effect to the foregoing Resolution and to seek such approval, consent from Central 

Government or other Government authority or agency, as may be required, time to time in this 

regard.” 

 

 

 

  



8. To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 sub-section (1), read with Section 

61, 64 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any 

amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof), and rules made thereunder, approval of the 

shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to increase the Authorised Share 

Capital of the Company from the existing Rs. 300,00,00,000/-(Rupees three hundred crore only) 

divided into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 

10,00,00,000 (Ten crore) preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) to Rs. 400,00,00,000 

(Rupees Four hundred crore only) divided into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty core) equity shares of Rs. 

10/- (Rupees Ten only) and 20,00,00,000 (Twenty crore) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees 

ten only) each.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the proposed Preference Shares shall also carry the rights as 

enumerated in the Articles or as may be decided by the terms of issue of such preference 

shares including compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the existing Clause V of Memorandum of Association of the 
Company be and is hereby substituted with the following:  
 

“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 400,00,00,000 (Rupees Four hundred 

crore only) dividend into: 

 

 (a) 20,00,00,000 (Twenty crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees ten) each; and  

 

 (b) 20,00,00,000 (Twenty crore) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees ten) each. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director, Director(s), Chief Financial Officer and 

Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally as well as jointly (wherever 

required) authorized for and on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds and things as 

may be necessary, incidental and consequential in relation thereto.” 

 
9. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

Resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 55, 62 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Share 

Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”) framed there under, as may be amended from 

time to time and such other rules as may be applicable and the enabling provisions of the 

Articles of Association of the Company and the regulations/guidelines, if any, prescribed by any 

relevant authorities from time to time, to the extent applicable and subject to such other 

approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be necessary and subject to such terms, 



conditions and modifications as may be considered necessary by the Board of Directors 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee 

thereof for the time being exercising the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution) or 

as may be prescribed or imposed while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions 

which may be agreed to by the Board, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded 

to the Board, to invite/offer/issue/allot 10.31 crore 10% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares (“CCCPS”) of Rs. 10/- each, aggregating Rs. 103.16 crore, for 

cash/consideration other than cash at par, on a ‘Rights Basis’ to the existing Equity 

shareholders of the Company, in the ratio of 1:1.3 i.e. 1.13 CCCPS of Rs. 10/- each for every 1 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each held in the Company in one or more tranches upto March 31, 

2016. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 55 of the Act and 
rules made thereunder, the following terms and conditions of CCCPS be and are hereby 
approved: 
 

 carry a preferential right vis-à-vis Equity Shares of the Company with respect to 

payment of dividend and repayment in case of a winding up or repayment of capital; 

 
 be non-participating in the surplus funds, surplus assets and profits, on winding-up 

which may remain after the entire capital has been repaid; 

 

 be paid dividend on a cumulative basis; 

 

 declaration of dividend, if any, on equity shares by the Company shall be subject to prior 

payment of dividend on Preference Shares;  

 

 if dividend is declared on equity shares at a rate higher than that of CCCPS, then, 

dividend on CCCPS shall be paid at the same rate as declared to be paid on equity 

shares; 

 

 be convertible into equity shares of the Company after a period of 3 years from date of 

issue/allotment; subject to a maximum further period of 2 years, and the conversion 

shall be governed by the extant regulatory guidelines at the time of conversion; 

 

 the Conversion Price, at the time of conversion of CCCPS into Company’s equity shares, 

shall be determined on arm’s length basis at any internationally acceptable pricing 

methodology on mutually agreed terms; 

 

 carry right to vote only on resolutions placed before the Company which directly affect 

the rights attached to the preference shares and any resolution for the winding up of the 

Company or for the repayment or reduction of its equity or preference share capital and 

the voting right on a poll shall be in a proportion to the share in the paid up preference 



share capital of the Company and shall be subject to the provisions of Section 47(2) of 

the Act; and 

 

 not be redeemed but shall be compulsorily convertible. 

 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board or any Committee thereof of the Board, be and is 

hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all such deeds, 

documents and writings, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary or 

incidental including paying such fees and incurring such expenses in relation thereto as 

it may deem appropriate and file documents, forms, etc, as required with the 

regulatory/statutory and sub-delegate all or any of the above powers/authorizations in 

favour of a Committee constituted by the Board for the aforesaid purpose, subject to 

such conditions as they may deem fit.” 

 

By Order of Board of Directors 
     
 
New Delhi                                                                          Samir Raheja     
August 12, 2015                                                                Sr.AVP & Company Secretary 
 
 
IFCI Factors Limited                                             
Registered Office: 
10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61,                               
Nehru Place, New Delhi – 110019                     
CIN: U74899DL1995GOI074649 
Phone: +91-11-41642840 
Fax: +91-11-4652 1435-36     
Website: www.ifcifactors.com 
Email: samir@ifcifactors.com 
     
 
Notes: 

 
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE 

“MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE 
INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE 
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE 
THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF 
MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN 
TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING 
RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 
OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY 

http://www.ifcifactors.com/


AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR 
SHAREHOLDER. 

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Annual 
General Meeting (hereinafter “the Meeting”) are requested to send to the Company a 
certified copy of their Board Resolution/s authorising their representative/s to attend and 
vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

3. The Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
setting out material facts relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting 
under Item Nos. 4,5,6,7,8 & 9 is annexed hereto. 

4. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report 
to the Meeting. 

5. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the 
order of names will be entitled to vote. 

6. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and/or the Statement are open for 
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business 
hours on any working day excluding Saturdays, till the date of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. 

7.  Members are hereby informed that pursuant to Section 205A (5) of the then Companies Act, 
1956, (“the previous Act”), the Company is obliged to transfer any money lying in the 
Unpaid Dividend Account, which remains unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years 
from the date of such transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account, to the credit of Investors 
Education and Protection Fund “Fund”) established by the Central Government under 
Subsection (1) of Section 205C of the previous Act. No claim shall lie against the Company 
or the Fund in respect of individual amounts of dividend remaining unclaimed or unpaid for 
a period of seven years and transferred to the Fund as aforesaid. 

8.  Those members who have not so far encashed their Dividend Warrants/Cheques for the 
Financial Year 2007-08 or any subsequent year/s, may immediately approach the Company 
for issuance of demand drafts in lieu thereof. 

9. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register 
their e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, 
Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically. 

10. Members are requested to kindly communicate immediately any change in their address, if 
any, to the Managing Director/Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company. 

11. Members are requested to intimate to the Company any queries regarding the 
accounts/notices at least ten days before the Annual General Meeting to enable the 
management to keep the information ready at the meeting. 

 
 
Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) 

 
The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in 
the accompanying Notice: 
 
Item No. 4 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act and the Articles of Association of the 

Company, the Board of Directors of the Company appointed Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay as an 

Additional Director of the Company with effect from March 12, 2015.  



 

Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay, aged around 66 years is B.Sc in Physics, M.Sc in Anthropology, 

holds a Diploma in Radio and Television Production and M.Phil in Sociology (Martial Arts 

Tradition  in India) a woman director on the Board of the company, is presently working as a 

project director in “NANRITAM” a Non profit earning welfare organization which is working for 

the upliftment of rural youth in Purulia. Prior to this she was engaged as Senior Consultant for 

developing an alternative system in education using ICT & Community Radio for vocational 

training at IGNOU. She has been associated with Art and Culture since 1972 and has been 

awarded with various accolades including Bharat Nirman Millenium Award for excellence as 

Media personality, Akashwani Annual Awards for Best Radio feature and Asian Broadcasting 

Union (ABU) Award for best feature in cultural theme. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, she would hold office up to the date of 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting. She is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director 

in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given her consent to act as a Director. The Company 

has received a declaration from her that she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed 

under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and a notice in writing from a member 

alongwith the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing her 

candidature for the office of Director of the Company. She possesses skills, experience and 

knowledge, inter-alia in the field of administration. In the opinion of the Board she fulfills the 

conditions prescribed for an Independent Director in the Act and the Rules made thereunder 

and she is independent of the management.  

 

She is neither a director on the Board of any other Company nor she is the Chairman or 

Member of any Committee constituted by the Board of other companies. She does not hold any 

securities in her own name and no share or convertible instrument in the Company is held by 

her, either in her name or in the name of any other person, on a beneficial basis. A total 2 

(two) Board Meetings were held during her tenure in the Financial Year 2014-15 and she has 

attended all the 2(two) Board Meetings and out of 3 (three) Board Meetings held in the 

Financial Year 2015-16 she has attended all the 3 (three) meetings. A sum of Rs.60,000/- was 

paid to her towards sitting fees for attending the meetings.  

 

A copy of the Letter of Appointment of Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay, Board Resolution and all 

other documents related to her appointment would be available for inspection without any fees 

by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any 

working day excluding Saturdays, till the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

 

Except Mrs. Mukhopadhyay, being an appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company and their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially 

or otherwise, in the Resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice. 

 



Accordingly, your Directors propose the appointment of Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay as an 

Independent Director of the Company for a term upto 3 (three) consecutive years commencing 

from March 12, 2015, not liable to retire by rotation and recommends the Resolution as set out 

in Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting. 

 
 
Item No. 5, 6 & 7 
 
Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy, aged about 47 years, is a Mechanical Engineer from Jadavpur Universuty 

and holds Associate Membership of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants 

(CIMA), UK. He is having vast experience in Project Appraisal/ Analysis of corporate credit 

proposals, monitoring of standard assets, business opportunities, deal structuring, corporate 

advisory services, NPA resolution, regional accounting, administration and MIS functions etc.  

 

He was first appointed as Director of the Company on March 24, 2014 and the Members in 

terms of the Resolution dated 10th September, 2014, passed at the Annual General Meeting  

appointed him as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of one year with effect 

from that date at a remuneration based on the letter bearing reference no. IFCI/SACC/2014-

140319001 dated March 18, 2014 and HR.139/2014-03406 dated March 31, 2014, received 

from IFCI Limited, holding Company. His last drawn remuneration for the Financial Year 2014-

15 was Rs. 34,83,862/- p.a. 

 

Concurring with the recommendation/ approval of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, based on qualifications, experience and contribution of Mr.Bikash Kanti Roy, the 

Board in its meeting held on March 12, 2015, subject to approval of shareholders re-appointed 

him as Managing Director for a further period of 2 (two) years w.e.f. March 24, 2015, at the 

remuneration as contained letter bearing reference no. IFC/SAD/IFL/2014-15-150312086 dated 

March 12, 2015 received from IFCI Limited, holding company and as per the service rules 

applicable to the employees of IFCI deputed/nominated as Directors on the Board of its 

subsidiaries, subject to the limits under applicable laws.  

 

Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy was nominated / deputed on the Board of the Company by IFCI Limited, 

holding company. However, IFCI Limited, holding company, vide its letters no. 

IFCI/S&AD/IFL/2015-150807396 & HR.139/2015-070801 both dated August 7, 2015 

nominated/deputed Mr. Satbir Singh (DIN :06887978) as the Director/Managing Director of the 

Company in place of Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy, prior to the expiry of his term and accordingly        

Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceases to be the Director/Managing Director of the Company w.e.f August 

10, 2015. The appointment and remuneration of Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy during his tenure as 

Managing Director is being placed before the members for ratification / approval. 

 



Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy is on the Board of Factor Association of India and does not hold the 

Chairmanship or Membership of any Committee constituted by the Board of other Companies. 

He does not hold any securities in his own name and no share or convertible instrument in the 

Company is held by him, either in his name or in the name of any other person, on a beneficial 

basis. A total number of 9 (nine) Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2014-15 

and he has attended all the 9 (nine) Board Meetings and out of 2 (two) Board meetings were 

held during his tenure in the Financial Year 2015-16 he has attended all the 2 (two) meetings. 

 

Copy of letters bearing reference no. IFCI/SACC/2014-140319001 dated March 18, 2014, 

HR.139/2014-03406 dated March 31, 2014 and IFC/SAD/IFL/2014-15-150312086 dated March 

12, 2015, received from IFCI Limited, Board Resolution and all other documents relating to the 

appointment and remuneration paid to Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy, would be available for inspection 

without any fees by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal 

business hours on any working day excluding Saturdays, till the date of the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting.  

 

Based on letters bearing reference no. IFCI/S&AD/IFL/2015-150807396 & HR.139/2015-070801 

both dated August 7, 2015 received from IFCI Limited, holding company, upon the 

recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the 

Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) had appointed Mr. Satbir 

Singh as Additional Director w.e.f August 10, 2015 and also the Managing Director under 

Section 196, 197 and 203 of the Act read with Rules made thereunder with effect from that 

date for a period of 1 (one) year at the following remuneration, subject to the approval of 

shareholders : 

Basic Salary: Rs. 46,150/- per month in the pay scale of 39850-1200(2)-42250-1300(3)-46150 
(6 years) 
 
Perquisites and Allowances: As per the letters bearing reference no. IFCI/S&AD/IFL/2015-

150807396 & HR.139/2015-070801 both dated August 7, 2015 received from IFCI Limited, 

holding company and as per the service rules applicable to the employees of IFCI Limited 

deputed/nominated as Directors on the Board of its subsidiaries, including any variation thereof, 

subject to the limits under applicable laws. 
 

Mr. Satbir Singh, Deputy General Manager, IFC Ltd., aged 57 years is a Certified Associate of 

Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB), holds Masters in Economics and Diploma in Financial 

Management from University of Mumbai. He started his career in 1980 with IFCI Limited and 

has experience of more than 30 years in financial sector. During his long tenure, he has gained 

vast knowledge in credit, appraisal, monitoring of assets, restructuring, management of non-

performing assets, etc.  



Mr.Singh has worked with IFCI Venture Capital Funds Ltd. as Chief Operating Officer from April 

2014 to October 2014 where he looked after the operations of credit, legal, secretarial, human 

resources, etc. 

Mr. Singh has also headed Lucknow Regional Office (LRO) of IFCI Limited for the period from 

April, 2015 to July, 2015. At LRO, he was responsible for the work relating to credit, legal and 

other administrative matters. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, he would hold office up to the date of 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting. He is not disqualified from being appointed as a 

Director/Managing Director and has given his consent to act as a Director. The Company has 

received a notice in writing from a member alongwith the deposit of requisite amount under 

Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company. 

In view of the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable provisions, if any of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto, the aforesaid appointment and 

remuneration of Mr. Satbir Singh is subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company. 

He is neither a director on the Board of any other Company nor he is the Chairman or Member 

of any Committee constituted by the Board of other companies. He does not hold any securities 

in his own name and no share or convertible instrument in the Company is held by him, either 

in his name or in the name of any other person, on a beneficial basis. Out of 1 (one) Board 

Meeting held during his tenure in the Financial Year 2015-16, till the date of this report, he has 

attended that meeting.  

 

Copy of letters bearing reference no. IFCI/S&AD/IFL/2015-150807396 & HR.139/2015-070801 

both dated August 7, 2015, Articles of Association, Board Resolution and all other documents 

relating to the appointment and remuneration of Mr. Satbir Singh would be available for 

inspection without any fees by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during 

normal business hours on any working day excluding Saturdays, till the date of the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting.  

 

Except Mr. Malay Mukherjee, CEO & Managing Director of IFCI Limited and Mr. Satbir Singh, 

the appointee himself, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 

their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at 

Item No. 5, 6 & 7 of the accompanying Notice. 

 
Accordingly, your Directors propose the appointment of Mr. Satbir Singh as Director /Managing 

Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and approval / ratification of 

appointment and remuneration paid to Mr.Bikash Kanti Roy during his tenure as Managing 

Director and recommend the Resolution as set out in Item no 5, 6 & 7 of the accompanying 

Notice for the approval of the shareholders. 



The Information as required by second proviso (iv) of Paragraph B of Section-II of 

Part-II of Schedule-V of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement of information is 

given below : 

 
I. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
1. Nature of Industry: 
 
The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as “NBFC-Factor” and NBFC-

ND and regulated by RBI as an NBFC-ND-SI, based on its asset size. Also, the Company is a 

registered Authorised Dealer (Category-III) with RBI.  

 

The Company is into factoring business and its product offerings are comprised of factoring and 

factoring related products, viz. domestic sales and purchase bill factoring, advance against 

future receivables, export factoring and bill discounting under letters of credit, supported by 

allied financing services such as corporate loans. The Company with its significant experience in 

the factoring industry in India and its network of regional marketing representatives has built an 

extensive and diverse client base and expertise across industry sectors and geographies, 

particularly in the manufacturing sector. As SME clusters are scattered across India with 

concentration in Tier II and Tier III cities and towns, the Company has strategically located its 

representatives in six locations across India, viz., New Delhi, Mumbai, Kolkata, Chennai, 

Ahmedabad and Hyderabad. 

 

The Company is also a member of Factors Chain International, which is a global network of 
factoring companies, whose common aim is to facilitate international trade through factoring 
and related financial services. 
 
 
2. Date of expected date of commencement of commercial production 
 
The Company was incorporated on December 14, 1995 and Commencement of Business 
Certificate was granted on December 14, 1995. The Company had since commenced its 
business. 
 
 
3. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per 

project approved by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus 

 
Not applicable. 

 
4. Financial performance based on given indicators 
 
The Financial Performance of the Company is as follows: 

 
 



(Rs. in crores) 

Particulars 
 

FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14 FY 2012-13 

Turnover 2,094 2,865 4,196 

Profit Before 
Tax 

(88.14) (49.24) 28.23 

Profit for the 
period 

(59.56) (35.54) 19.23 

 
 
During the Financial Year 2014-15 the total turnover of the Company was Rs. 2,094 crore as 
against Rs. 2,865 crore in the financial year 2013-14. Further the Company incurred a loss after 
tax of Rs. 59.56 crore as against Rs. 35.53 crore in Financial Year 2013-14. 
 
 

5. Foreign investments or collaborations, if any 
Nil 
 
 

II. Information about appointee: 
 
 

1. Background Details: 

 

Mr. Bikash K. Roy aged about 47 years is a Mechanical Engineer from Jadavpur 

University and holds Associate Membership of the Chartered Institute of Management 

Accountants (CIMA), UK. He is having vast experience in Project Appraisal / Analysis of 

corporate credit proposals, monitoring of standard assets, business opportunities and 

deal structuring, corporate advisory services, NPA resolution, regional accounting, 

administration and MIS functions, etc. He is also on the Board of Factor Association of 

India. 

 

Mr. Satbir Singh, Deputy General Manager, IFC Ltd., aged 57 years is a Certified 

Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB), holds Masters in Economics and 

Diploma in Financial Management from University of Mumbai. He started his career in 

1980 with IFCI Limited and has experience of more than 30 years in financial sector. 

During his long tenure, he has gained vast knowledge in credit, appraisal, monitoring of 

assets, restructuring, management of non-performing assets, etc.  

Mr.Singh has worked with IFCI Venture Capital Funds Ltd. as Chief Operating Officer 

from April 2014 to October 2014 where he looked after the operations of credit, legal, 

secretarial, human resources, etc. 



Mr. Singh has also headed Lucknow Regional Office (LRO) of IFCI Limited for the period 

from April, 2015 to July, 2015. At LRO, he was responsible for the work relating to 

credit, legal and other administrative matters. 

 
2. Past Remuneration 

 
Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy was appointed as the Managing Director w.e.f. March 24, 2014 and 

the remuneration received by him was Rs. 57,374 (Rupees Fifty seven thousand three 

hundred seventy four) in the financial year 2013-14 & Rs. 34,83,862/- p.a. (Rupees 

Thirty four lacs eighty three thousand eight hundred and sixty two only) in the Financial 

Year 2014-15.  

 

Mr.Satbir Singh has been appointed as Managing Director w.e.f August 10, 2015 for a 

period of one year and the disclosure of his past remuneration is not applicable. 

 
 

3. Recognition or awards 
 

Mr.Bikash Kanti Roy and Mr. Satbir Singh are able and successful leaders with 

impeccable operational standards.  

 
4. Job profile and his suitability 

 
Role of Managing Director of the Company includes overall responsibility for the growth 

and direction to the Company. He provides the necessary strategic direction to all 

business lines/interests of the Company and contribution in building the Company 

through various stages of transformation in a constantly changing business environment 

and he is instrumental in the overall business development of the Company as well. 
 

5. Remuneration proposed 
 

Mr.Satbir Singh  
 
The Board based upon the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has approved the appointment and remuneration of Mr. Satbir Singh as 
Managing Director w.e.f August 10, 2015 for a period of one year subject to the 
approval of shareholders at the following remuneration 
 
Basic Salary: Rs. 46,150/- per month in the pay scale of 39850-1200(2)-42250-1300(3)-
46150(6 years) 

 
Perquisites and Allowances: As per the letters bearing reference no. 

IFCI/S&AD/IFL/2015-150807396 & HR.139/2015-070801 both dated August 7, 2015 

received from IFCI Limited, holding company and as per the service rules applicable to 



the employees of IFCI Limited deputed/nominated as Directors on the Board of its 

subsidiaries, including any variation thereof, subject to the limits under applicable laws. 

 
Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy 

 
Approval / ratification of members is sought for the appointment, remuneration and 

perquisites paid to Mr.Bikash Kanti Roy, as per the letters bearing reference no. 

HR./139/2014-030406 dated March 31, 2014 & IFC/SAD/IFL/2014-15-150312086 dated 

March 12, 2015 and as per the service rules applicable to the employees of IFCI Ltd. 

deputed/nominated as Directors on the Board of its subsidiaries, including any variation 

thereof, subject to the limits under applicable laws. 

 

 

6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the 
Company, profile of the position and person. 

 
Taking into account the turnover of the Company and responsibilities of Managing 

Director the remuneration being proposed / approved /ratified / to be paid to them are 

reasonable and in line with the remuneration levels in the industry across the country. 

 
7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship 

with the managerial personnel, if any. 
 

Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy was nominated /deputed by IFCI Limited, the Holding Company 
and similarly Mr.Satbir Singh is also nominated / deputed by IFCI Limited and both have 
no pecuniary interest in the Company apart from receiving remuneration as Managing 
Director of the Company. 

 
 
III. OTHER INFORMATION 
 

1. Reason of loss or inadequate profits 
 

Amidst the challenging macroeconomic environment, the Company witnessed a 

substantial reduction in average income generating assets during FY 2014-15 and 

further slippages, resulting into the Company incurring losses during the Financial Year 

under Report. 

 

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement 
 

The Company has been following sound business practices and intensified its recovery 

efforts during the last fiscal, which would enable it to build quality asset portfolio, curtail 

further slippages and recover the amounts from NPAs. Systems and procedures have 

been streamlined. The Company has approved various policy papers and existing 

systems and procedures have been streamlined and new systems and procedures have 



been approved and adopted, which were non-existent earlier. A new risk model has 

been put in place. Fresh sanctions and disbursements are being made with sound 

transaction structure and/or adequate security backing. 

 
3. Expected increase in the productivity and profits in measurable terms 

 
The management of the Company expects improvements in its earnings & profitability in 

the current Financial Year. 

 

 
IV. DISCLOSURES 
 
Information on the remuneration package of the managerial personnel 
 

(i)  All elements of remuneration packages such as salary, benefits, bonuses, 
stock options, pension, etc. of all the Directors:  

Details with regard to salary, benefits and sitting fees paid to the Directors are 

disclosed in the Annual Report. The Company did not give any bonuses and stock 

options to the Directors.  

(ii)  Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives along with the 
performance criteria:  

Details with regard to salary, benefits and sitting fees paid to the Directors are 

disclosed in the Annual Report. The Company does not give any performance linked 

incentives to the Directors.  

(iii)  Service contracts, notice period, severance fees:  

Not Applicable.  

(iv)  Stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a 
discount as well as the period over which accrued and over which 
exercisable:  
The details of remunerations and other information is given in the MGT-9 (Extract of 
the Annual Return) being made part of the Directors’ Report. 

 
Except Mr. Satbir Singh, being an appointee and Mr. Malay Mukherjee, CEO & Managing 

Director of IFCI Limited, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 

their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at 

Item No. 5, 6 & 7 of the accompanying Notice. 

 
Your Directors recommend the Resolution for approval of the Members. 

 
 
Item no. 8 
 
The Authorised Share Capital of the company as reflected in the Memorandum and Articles of 

Association as on date is Rs. 300,00,00,000/-(Rupees three hundred crore only) divided into 



20,00,00,000 (Twenty crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 

10,00,00,000 (Ten crore) preference shares. The Board of Directors of the Company in their 

meeting held on 12th August, 2015 subject to requisite approvals and consents resolved to raise 

additional capital. In view of the same, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company needs to 

be increased from Rs. 300,00,00,000/-(Rupees three hundred crore only) to Rs. 400,00,00,000 

(Rupees Four hundred crore only) by addition of Rs. 100,00,00,000 (Rupees one hundred crore 

only) divided into 10,00,00,000 (10 crore) preference shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- 

(Rupees Ten only). Consequent upon the increase of Authroised Share Capital, Capital Clause 

contained in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company needs to be altered 

as indicated in Resolution No.8 contained in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.  

 

A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association with the proposed alteration, Board 

Resolution and all other documents relating to the increase in the authorized capital would be 

available for inspection without any fees by the members at the Registered Office of the 

Company during normal business hours on any working day excluding Saturdays, till the date of 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No.8 of the 

accompanying Notice. 

 
Your Directors recommend the Resolution for approval of the Members. 
  

Item No. 9 

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 12, 2015 has recommended the invite/ 

offer/issue/allot 10.31 crore 10% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares 

(“CCCPS”) of Rs. 10/- each, aggregating Rs. 103.16 crore, for cash/consideration other than 

cash at par, on a ‘Rights Basis’ to the existing Equity shareholders of the Company, in the ratio 

of 1:1.3 i.e. 1.13 CCCPS of 10/- each for every 1 Equity Shares of 10 each held in the Company. 

 
Section 55 of the Act read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 

2014 (“Rules”) framed there under inter alia requires a company to obtain the prior approval of 

the Shareholders, by way of a Special Resolution for issuance of preference shares. 

  
Thus, the approval of the shareholders is being sought by way of a Special Resolution to offer 
CCCPS. 
 
A statement of disclosures as required under Rule 9(3) of the Companies (Share Capital and 

Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the terms of issue of the CCCPS, are as under: 

 

 

 



Issue size, number of preference 

shares to be issued and nominal 

value of each share 

Instrument: Preference Shares 

Issue Size: Rs. 103.16 crore 

No. of preference shares: 10.31 crore 

Nominal Value: Rs. 10/- each 

Nature of shares Cumulative, Non-participating and Compulsory 

Convertible into equity shares. 

Objectives of the issue To meet the statutory requirement of maintain CAR @ 

15% and augment the capital base and to meet the 

requirement of carrying out the normal business 

operations and growth 

Manner of issue of shares The CCCPS are issued on a right basis in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 62(1)(a). 

The price at which such shares are 

proposed to be issued 

The CCCPS are proposed to be issued at par. 

The basis on which the price has 

been arrived at 

The CCCPS are issued at Par, however they are 

convertible into Equity shares at price to be determined 

by an independent valuer on arm’s length basis at any 

internationally acceptable pricing methodology closer to 

the Conversion Date and as may be determined by the 

Board. 

Terms of issue and rate of dividend 

on each share 

Issued and offered on a Rights basis in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 62(1)(a) of the Act. A dividend 

of Rs. 1/- per share per annum, if declared, would be 

payable on a pro rata basis from the date of allotment 

Terms, manner and modes of 

redemption 

 CCCPS are not redeemable but are convertible into 

equity shares of the Company. 

Conversion Price and terms of 

conversion 

Conversion of CCCPS will be based on the fair value to 

be determined by an independent valuer on arm’s 

length basis at any internationally acceptable pricing 

methodology closer to the Conversion Date and as may 

be determined by the Board. 
 

At the end of 3 years from the date of issue/allotment, 

the preference shareholders shall have the right to 

convert preference shares into equity, subject to the 

maximum further period of 2 years. 

Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on date: 

Sr. 
No 

Category of the 
Shareholder(s) 

No. of 
Equity Shares 

No. of 
Preference Shares 

1 Promoters  

(including 8 (eight) equity shares, one each 

7,91,54,700 7,50,00,000 



held by 8 (eight) individual nominees) 

2. Public Shareholding 2,03,000 38,000 

 Total 7,93,57,700 7,50,38,000 

 Expected dilution in equity capital upon 
conversion of preference shares 

 

Number of equity shares may be higher 

by 10,31,65,010, on the conversion of 

all the CCCPS. However, actual addition 

to the number of Equity shares shall 

depend on the existing shareholders 

subscribing to the CCCPS. 

 

The issue of CCCPS is in accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of 

Association of the Company. There is no subsisting default in the redemption of preference 

shares issued by the Company. 

 

A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association, Board Resolution and all other 

documents relating to issuance of preference shares would be available for inspection without 

any fees by the shareholders at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business 

hours on any working day excluding Saturdays, till the date of the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. 

 

Mr. Malay Mukherjee being the CEO & Managing Director of IFCI Ltd., the holding company 

may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the Resolution. None of the other Directors or 

Key Managerial Persons of the Company or their respective relatives, are concerned or 

interested in the passing of the above Resolution. 

 
Your Directors recommend the Resolution for approval of the Members. 
 
 

By Order of Board of Directors                                 
For IFCI Factors Limited  

   
 
            -sd- 

New Delhi                                       Samir Raheja 
August 12, 2015                 Sr.AVP & Company Secretary 



     Form No. MGT-11 
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[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
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at………………. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution/s as are indicated 
below: 
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2. Fixing the Remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the Company for   
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the financial year 2015-16 as appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor 
General of India   

3. Appointment of Mr. Malay Mukherjee, retiring by rotation   

Special Business   

4. Appointment of Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay as an Independent 
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5.  Approval/Ratification of appointment and remuneration paid to       
Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy as Managing Director  
 

  

6. 
 

Appointment of Mr.Satbir Singh as Additional Director   

 
7. 

Appointment and remuneration of Mr.Satbir Singh as Managing 
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8. Increase in the Authorized Capital of the Company 
 

  

9.  Offer and issue of Preference Shares on Rights Basis 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS  
 
The Board of Directors of your Company are pleased to present the Twentieth Annual Report of 
the Company together with the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Report on 
Corporate Governance and Audited Financial Statement of Accounts for the year ended on 
March 31, 2015. 
 
1. Financial Results  
 
Financial Results of your Company for the year under review are summarized as under: 

(Rs. In lacs) 
 

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2015 

Year ended 
31.03.2014 

Total Income  10,565.48 14,215.26 

Financial Charges 7,013.82 9,157.45 

Personnel and Other Expenses 1,132.88 1,371.11 

Profit / (Loss) Before Provisions & Write-Offs       2,418.78         3,686.70  

Provisions & Write-Offs 11,233.59 8,609.74 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (8,814.81) (4,923.04) 

Provision for Taxation 73.23 535.37 

Deferred Tax (2,931.92) (1,904.48) 

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (5,956.12) (3,553.93) 

Appropriations:     

Profit / (Loss) Brought down from Balance Sheet 1,557.00 5,110.93 

Profit / (Loss) carried to Balance Sheet (4,409.00) 1,557.00 

 
 

                                                                                                                                    
2. State of affairs of the Company 
 

During the year under report, your Company continues to be a major provider of factoring 

services in India. After registering sizeable growth year on year in business following its 

acquisition by IFCI Ltd., your Company had been in a phase of consolidation over FY 2013-14 

and FY 2014-15 in the wake of the adverse economic environment. The FY 2014-15 had been a 

tough year for your Company amidst the challenging macro-economic environment and the 

Company witnessed a reduction in income generating assets and further slippages, resulting in 

the Company incurring a loss. During the year under Report, your Company achieved a turnover 

of Rs. 2,094 Crore (a decline of 26.91% Y-O-Y) and a gross income of Rs. 105.20 Crore (a 

decline of 21.33% Y-O-Y). Further, your Company incurred a loss before tax of Rs. 88.14 crore 

and a loss after tax of Rs. 59.56 crore. 

 



The major financial parameters for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2015 vis-à-vis the 

previous financial year are tabulated below: 

(Rs. in Crore) 

Parameters Year ended 
31.03.2015 

Year ended 
31.03.2014 

Turnover 2,094 2,865 

Funds in Use     

  Factoring Business 689 736 

  Other Business 131 150 

Total Funds in use 820 886 

Total Income 105.65 142.15 

Profit Before Tax (88.14) (49.23) 

Profit After Tax (59.56) (35.54) 

 

3. Dividend 

With regard to the performance of your Company for the period ended on March 31, 2015 and 

in view of the losses for the year, no dividend has been recommended by the Board to be paid 

to the Members for Financial Year 2014-15. Further, on account of incurring losses, your  

Company has not declared any dividend on Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference 

Shares during the period under review. 

4. Transfer to Reserves 
 

Since the Board of Directors of your Company has not recommended any dividend on the Equity 

Shares of the Company for the Financial Year 2014-15, the provisions of Companies 

(Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014 are not applicable. 

5. Capital Structure / alteration of Share Capital  

The capital structure of your company is given as under : 
 

Authorized Share Capital  
 
20,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 200,00,00,000/- 
10,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-each aggregating to Rs. 100,00,00,000/- 
 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 
 
7,93,57,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 79,35,77,000 
7,50,38,000 9% Compulsory Convertible Cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/- each 
aggregating to Rs. 75,03,80,000/-. 
 



* During the year 2014-15, the Authorised Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 150 

crore to Rs. 300 crore. Further, during the year, the Company made Right Issue to the existing 

equity shareholders in ratio of 1:1 and thereafter allotted 7,50,38,000 9% Compulsory 

Convertible Cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Company to the existing 

equity shareholders of the Company, resulting in increase in the paid up capital of the Company 

from Rs. 793,577,000 to Rs. 1,543,957,000. 

 
6. Change in Status of the Company 
 
On account of IFCI Ltd., the holding company becoming a Government Company, in terms of 
the provisions of Section 2 (45) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) your Company has also 
become a Government Company with effect from April 7, 2015. 
 
7. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 
Your Company has eight (8) Directors consisting of five (5) Independent Directors, two (2) Non-

Executive Directors and one (1) Managing Director as on March 31, 2015. 

Mr. Malay Mukherjee, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay was appointed the Additional Director (Woman Director in terms 

of provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013) on March 12, 2015, based on the 

recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay holds 

office only up to the date of forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company and is 

eligible for appointment as a Director. Your Company has received a notice in writing from a 

member along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the 

candidature of Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay for the office of Director of the Company. The 

Board recommends her appointment and accordingly Resolution seeking approval of the 

members for her appointment has been included in the Notice of forthcoming Annual General 

Meeting of the Company along with her brief profile. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the appointment of Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy, 

Managing Director, Mr. Lalit Bansal, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Rajiv L. Jha, Company 

Secretary, were formalized as the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. During the year,  

Mr. Rajiv L. Jha resigned as the Company  Secretary of the Company w.e.f. September 19, 2015 

and Mr. Ankur Agarwal joined the Company as the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 

March 02, 2015. Further after the close of the Financial Year, Mr. Ankur Agarwal resigned as 

the Company Secretary w.e.f. July 16, 2015 and Mr. Samir Raheja has been appointed as 

Company Secretary w.e.f. July 17, 2015. 

Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy has been serving as the Managing Director since March 24, 2014. The 

Board of Directors at their meeting held on March 12, 2015 approved his re-appointment as 



the Managing Director, subject to the approval of the shareholders for a further period of 

2(two) years w.e.f March 24, 2015. However, IFCI Limited, the holding company, vide its letter 

no. IFCI/S&AD/IFL/2015-150807936 dated August 7, 2015 nominated/deputed Mr.Satbir Singh 

(DIN : 06887978) as the Director/Managing Director of the Company in place of Mr. Bikash 

Kanti Roy, prior to the expiry of his term and accordingly Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceases to be the 

Director/Managing Director of the Company w.e.f August 10, 2015. The appointment of and 

remuneration of Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy during his tenure as Managing Director and appointment 

and proposed remuneration of Mr.Satbir Singh, has been included in the Notice of forthcoming 

Annual General Meeting of the Company for the approval of members. 

8. Disclosure of Nomination & Remuneration Policy  
 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and in 

compliance of Section 178(3) of the Act framed a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for 

selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, other employees, fixing their 

remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence 

of a director and related matters as provided under the aforesaid section. The Nomination and 

Remuneration policy is enclosed at Annexure – I.  

The composition and terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is 
covered in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
9. Contracts or arrangements with Related Parties 
 

All Related Party Transactions that were entered during the financial year were in the ordinary 

course of the business of your Company and were on arm’s length basis, details whereof are 

mentioned in Note no.33 to the Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements. 

There were no materially significant related party transactions entered by the Company with 

Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other persons which may have a potential 

conflict with the interest of the Company. Further, your Company did not enter into contract or 

arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. All 

such Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval, wherever 

applicable. Form AOC-2 is enclosed in Annexure-II. The policy on Related Party Transactions 

and also on dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved by the Audit Committee and 

the Board of Directors is annexed herewith as Annexure-II and uploaded on the website of the 

Company and the link for the same is http://www.ifcifactors.com/investors.html.  
 

10. Extract of Annual Return 
 

The extract of Annual Return as provided under Sub-Section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ( the “Act”) is enclosed at Annexure-III in the prescribed form MGT-9 and forms part 
of this Report. 

 
11. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
 

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Company has established Corporate 

http://www.ifcifactors.com/investors.html


Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR 

Committee and an Annual Report on CSR Activities forms part of this Report as Annexure-IV. 

Further details of composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and other 

details are also provided in the said Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this 

report. 

 

Owing to losses, your Company has deferred contribution for the Financial Year 2014-15 
towards CSR Activities. 
 
 

12.  Human Resource Development 
 
The Company has continuously adopted structures that help attract the best external talent and 

promote internal talent to higher roles and responsibilities. The Company’s people-centric focus 

providing an open work environment fostering continuous improvement and development 

helped several employees realize their career aspirations during the year.  

 
During the year under report, your Company witnessed a high attrition rate and in order to 

augment its headcount, your Company recruited 18 officers across various verticals of the 

Company. As on March 31, 2015, your Company had 51 (Fifty one) employees on its roll vis-à-

vis 49 (Forty nine) employees as on March 31, 2014.  

 
13. Fixed Deposits 
 
During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits as per the 

provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and as such no amount of principal or interest was 

outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date. 

 

14. Number of meetings of the Board  
 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and 
strategy apart from other Board business.  

The notice of Board meetings is given well in advance to all the Directors. Usually, meetings of 
the Board are held in Delhi. The Agenda for the Board and Committee meetings includes 
detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an 
informed decision.  

The Board met nine times in the financial year 2014-2015  viz., on April 15, 2014, July 18, 

2014, August 13, 2014, September 16, 2014, November 05, 2014, January 23, 2015, February 

16, 2015, March 12, 2015 & March 31, 2015. The maximum interval between any two meetings 

did not exceed 120 days. 

 



15. Committees of the Board  
 

During the year, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Board re-constituted some of 
its Committees and also formed a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. There are 
currently eight Committees of the Board, as follows:  

 Audit Committee 

 Committee of Directors  

 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee  

 Asset Liability Management Committee  

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

 Investor Grievance Committee 

 Risk Management Committee 

 Recovery Committee 

The terms of reference, composition, meetings, attendance of the Audit Committee are detailed 

therein in the Corporate Governance Report.  

 
16.  Board Evaluation 
 
The Board of Directors and Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has put in place an 

evaluation framework for evaluation of the Board, its Committees and of individual directors, in 

compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. A 

structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the 

Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning, its Committees and Directors.`  

 
Based on the evaluation process, the NRC/Board found the performance of Directors, 
Committees and the Board thereof satisfactory. 
 
A separate meeting of the independent directors was convened, which reviewed the 

performance of the Board (as a whole), the non-independent directors and the Chairman.  

 
17.  Disclosure As Per Sexual Harrassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013 
 
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy 

on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the 

provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 



Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. During the Financial Year 2014-15, your 

Company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment.  

 
 
18.  Documents Placed on the Website (www.ifcifactors.com) 
 
The following documents have been placed on the website in compliance with the Act: 
 

 Details of unpaid dividend as per Section 124(2) 

 Corporate Social Responsibility Policy as per Section 135(4)(a) 

 Financial statements of the Company along with relevant documents as per third proviso 

to Section 136(1) 

 Details of vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns as 

per proviso to Section 177(10). 

 The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors as per schedule IV to 

the Act 

 Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information 

 Related Party Transactions Policy as per guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India  

 Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 

2013 

 

19. Independent Directors’ Declaration 
 

The definition of ‘Independence’ of Directors is derived from Section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Based on the confirmation / disclosures received from the Directors and on 
evaluation of the relationships disclosed, the following Non-Executive Directors are Independent 
in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 :  

a) Mr. Shrawan Nigam  
b) Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta 
c) Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb 
d) Mr. RajibSekhar Sahoo 
e) Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay 
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company 
has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that 
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.Further, 
there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as independent 
director during the year. 
 
 
20. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(5) of the Act and based on the representations 

received from the management, the directors hereby confirm that: 

http://www.ifcifactors.com/


 

i.  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2014-15, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures; 

ii. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 

profit/loss of the Company for the financial year; 

iii. they have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act. They confirm that there are adequate systems and controls for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

v. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and operating properly; and 

vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

21. Corporate Governance 
 

Your Company is committed to achieve the good standards of Corporate Governance and 

adheres to the Corporate Governance requirements set by the Regulators/applicable laws. 

Accordingly, your Board functions as trustees of the shareholders for ensuring the long term 

economic value for its shareholders is achieved while balancing the interest of all the 

stakeholders. 

 

A separate section on Corporate Governance standards followed by your Company is enclosed 

and forms part of the Annual Report. 

 
 
22.  Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments 
 
Your Company has provided loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Act 

during the Financial Year 2014-15. Pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 

loans made, guarantees given or securities provided or acquisition of securities by a Non 

Banking Financial Company in the ordinary course of its business are exempted from disclosure 

in the Annual Report. 

 
 
23.  Internal Control 
 
Your Company had laid down a set of standards, processes and structure which enable 

implementing internal financial control across the organisation and ensure that the same are 

adequate and operating effectively. 



 
24. Risk Management 
 
Your Company has in place approved Risk Management Policies wherein all material risks faced 

by your Company are identified and assessed. Further, Risk Management is overseen by the 

Risk Management Committee/Audit Committee of the Company on a continuous basis. The 

Committee oversees your Company’s processes and policies for determining risk tolerance and 

reviews management’s measurement and comparison of overall risk tolerance to established 

levels. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed 

through mitigating actions on a continuous basis.  

 
25. Material Changes and Commitment Affecting Financial Position of the Company 
 
There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 

Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company till the 

date of this report. 

 
26. Vigil Mechanism 
 
The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report their 

genuine concerns. Your Company has established a mechanism called ‘Vigil Mechanism’ for 

directors and employees to report to the appropriate authorities any instances of unethical 

behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics 

policy and provides safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. 

The policy permits all the Directors and employees to report their concerns directly to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. During the year under review, no employee 

was denied access to the Audit Committee. The details of the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigilance 

Policy are available on the website of the Company (www.ifcifactors.com). 

 
27. Particulars of Remuneration 
 
The information required under Section 197 of the Act and the Rules made there-under, in 
respect of employees of the Company is follows : 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each 
director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the company for the 
financial year 

Name of the 

Director 

Directors Ratio to 

Median 

Remuneration 

Mr. Malay 
Mukherjee 

Nil 

Mr. Sudhir Garg 

(paid to IFCI Ltd.)  

1:1.65 

Mr. Vinod Kumar 
Gupta 

1:2.39 



Mr. Ajoy Kumar 

Deb 

1:2.15 

Mr. Rajib Sekhar 
Sahoo 

1:11.62 

Mrs. Bandana 

Mukhopadhyay 

1:18.81 

Mr. Shrawan 

Nigam 

1:2.72 

Mr. Bikash Kanti 
Roy, Managing 

Director 

 

1:0.17 

 

2. 
 
 

The percentage increase in remuneration 
of each director, Chief Financial Officer, 
Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year 

Shri Bikash Kanti 

Roy, Managing 

Director  

38.49% 

Shri Lalit Bansal, 

Chief Financial 

Officer 

3.67% 

Shri Rajiv L.Jha (up 

to 19.09.2014) 
Shri Ankur Agarwal, 

Company Secretary 

(w.e.f 02.03.2015) 

(20.04%) 
 

(due to difference in 

basic salary, pay 
scale remaining 

same) 

3. Percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of the employees in the 
Financial Year 
 

4.69% 

4. Total No. of Permanent employees on the 
rolls of the Company 

 

51 

5. Explanation on the relationship between 
average increase in remuneration and 
company performance 
 

On an average the employees 
received an increase of about 3.98% 
which is below the market trends. 
Keeping in view the weak economic 
scenario, the performance of your 
Company was also not encouraging 
and it suffered a loss during the 
Financial Year 
 

6. Comparison of the remuneration of the 
Key Managerial Personnel against the 
performance of the company 
 

In view of the weak economic 
scenario the performance of the 
company was not encouraging and 
the Company suffered a loss during 
the Financial Year On an average the 
increase in the average remuneration 
to the KMP was 17.58%. The 
bifurcation of KMP wise increase of 
Remuneration is covered herein 
above.  
 



7. Variations in the market capitalisation of 
the company, price earnings ratio as at 
the closing date of the current financial 
year and previous financial year and 
percentage increase over decrease in the 
market quotations of the shares of the 
company in comparison to the rate at 
which the company came out with the last 
public offer in case of listed companies, 
and in case of unlisted companies, the 
variations in the net worth of the company 
as at the close of the current financial year 
and previous financial year. 
Variations in the net worth of the company 
as at the close of the current financial year 
and previous financial year 

Your Company’s Equity Shares are 
not listed on the Stock Exchanges. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14.48% 

8. Average percentile increase already made 
in the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the 
percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration 
 

 

% increase in 

remuneration of 
employees other 

than KMPs 

% increase in 

remuneration of 
KMPs 

3.91% 17.58% 

9. Comparison of each remuneration of the 
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against 
the performance of the Company 
 

Name of 

KMP 
% 

Increase 
from 
Last FY 

% of Profit/  

(Loss)  
since last FY 

Mr.Bikash 

Kanti Roy,  
Managing 

Director 

38.49% (67.63%) 

Mr. Lalit 

Bansal, 
CFO 

3.67% (67.63%) 

* Mr. Ankur 

Agarwal, 
Company 

Secretary 
(w.e.f 

02.03.2015) 

(20.04%) (67.63%) 

 

10. The key parameters for any variable 
component of remuneration availed by the 
directors 
 

As per letters bearing reference no. 
HR./139/2014-030406 dated March 
31, 2014 & IFC/SAD/IFL/2014-15-
150312086 dated March 12, 2015 
received from IFCI Limited, holding 
company and the policy of IFCI 



Limited 
 

11. The ratio of the remuneration of the 
highest paid director to that of the 
employees who are not directors but 
receive remuneration in excess of the 
highest paid director during the year 
 

Not Applicable 

12. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per 
the remuneration policy of the Company 
 

The Company has approved its 
Nomination and Remuneration policy 
in its Board Meeting held on August 
13, 2014. All the appointments/ 
remuneration is being offered/ fixed 
on the basis of the approved 
remuneration policy of the Company.  
 

 

28. Particulars of Employees 

Statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forming part 

of the Directors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2015. 

  
(A) Personnel who are in receipt of remuneration aggregating not less than Rs. 
60,00,000 per annum and employed throughout the financial year: 
  
During the financial year 2014-15 or any part therefore, there was no employee who was in 

receipt of remuneration of 60 lacs or above. 

  

(B) Personnel, who have worked for the part of the financial year, and who are in 
receipt of remuneration  for any part of that year, at a rate which  in the 
aggregating was not less than Rs. 5,00,000 per  month 
  
During the financial year 2014-15 or any part therefore, there was no employee who had 

worked for a part of the financial year and who was in receipt of remuneration for any part 

thereof, at a rate which  in the aggregating was not less than Rs.5,00,000 per month. 

  
(C) Personnel who were drawing remuneration in excess of Managing Director and 
holding Equity Shares of the Company in excess of 2%. 
 
During the financial year 2014-15 or any part therefore, there was no employee who if 

employed throughout the financial year or part thereof was in receipt of remuneration in that 

year which, in aggregate, or as the case may be, at the rate which, in aggregate, was in excess 

of that drawn by the Managing Director and held by himself or alongwith his spouse and 

dependent children, not less than 2% of the Equity Shares of your Company.  

 



29. Subsidiaries/ Joint Venture/ Associate 
 

Your Company does not have any subsidiary/ joint venture/ associate company. 

30. Ratings for Term Borrowings 

 
The Company’s borrowings have been assigned the following ratings by Credit Analysis & 
Research Ltd. (CARE): 
 
 

Facilities Rating Agency :              
CARE RATING 

Rating Remarks 

Long-term Bank Facilities* Care A- (SO)  

[Single A Minus (structured 
obligation)] 

Reaffirmed 

Short-Term Bank Facilities  Care A (SO)  

[A One (Structured Obligation)] 

Reaffirmed 

Long term Bank Facilities CARE BBB 

(Triple B) 

Reaffirmed 

Long Term instruments  (NCD) Care BBB (Triple B) Reaffirmed 

Commercial Paper (CP) * Care A1 (SO) [A One 

(Structured Obligation)] 

Reaffirmed 

*backed by Letter of Comfort from IFCI Ltd. 

 
31. Statutory Auditors & Auditors’ Report 
 
During the year under Report, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) appointed 
M/s Chandiwala Virmani and Associates (DE0155), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for 
the FY 2014-15.  

Further, your Company has received a letter (bearing Ref. No./CA. V/COY/CENTRAL 

GOVERNMENT,IFCIFL(0)/273 dated July 9, 2015) from the office of the Comptroller and Auditor 

General of India appointing M/s Chandiwala Virmani and Associates (DE0155), Dr. P.N. Behl 

House, 2nd Floor, 13, Daryaganj, Delhi-110002, as the Statutory Auditors of your Company for 

the Financial Year 2015-16. 

 

There were no qualification(s) or observation(s) or other remarks made by the Statutory 

Auditors in the Independent Auditor’s Report of your Company for the Financial Year 2014-15 

submitted by the Statutory Auditors viz. M/s. Chandiwala Virmani & Associates (Firm Regd. No. 

DE0155). 

 
Your Company has received no comments [from the Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

(C&AG) under Section 143 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013] on the annual accounts of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2014-15 based on the No Review Report from C&AG, and the 

same is hereby annexed as Annexure V before the Members pursuant to 143(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 



32. Secretarial Audit Report 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company appointed M/s. Arun Kumar Gupta, Practising Company 

Secretary, to conduct the Secretarial Audit and his Report on Company’s Secretarial Audit is 

appended to this Report as Annexure VI. Further, there were no qualification(s) or 

observation(s) or other remarks made by the Secretarial Auditors viz. M/s. Arun Kumar Gupta in 

the Secretarial Auditor’s Report of your Company for the Financial Year 2014-15. 

 

33. Corporate Governance Report 
 

 
The report on Corporate Governance is annexed and forms an integral part of the Annual 
Report. 
 

 

34. Energy Conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo 
 

The provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made there 

under relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption do not apply to your Company 

as it is not a manufacturing company. However, your Company has been increasingly using 

information technology in its operations and promotes conservation of resources. During the 

year under review, there was no foreign earning and expenditure in foreign exchange was       

Rs. 55,28,324. 
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Annexure I 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
 

1. Background  
 

1.1 The objective of Nomination and Remuneration Policy is to ensure rationale and 

objectivity in the remuneration of the Directors, Senior Management & 

employees of the Company. The Policy also intends to bring in a pragmatic 

methodology in screening of candidates who may be recommended to the 

position of Directors and to establish effective evaluation criteria to evaluate the 

performance of every Director and the overall Board of the Company. 
 

1.2 The Policy also intends to prevent the Board of Directors degenerating into a 

closed and narrow entity, in which incumbent members appoint their own kind. 
 

1.3 The Policy also serves as a guiding principle to ensure good Corporate 

Governance as well as to provide sustainability to the Board of Directors of the 

Company.  
 

2. Framework 
 

2.1 The requirement of formulating a Nomination and Remuneration Policy stems 

out from the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force.  
 

2.2 References have also been made to the Guidelines of Reserve Bank of India 

Corporate Governance Norms for NBFCs as prescribed by RBI and amended from 

time to time. 
 

2.3 Any other Law and Statute as may be applicable for the time being in force. 

 

 
 

3. Objective 
 

3.1 To identify suitable persons, interview them, if necessary, and recommend them 

as suitable candidates to fill up vacancies on the Board or augment the Board 

and Senior Management.  
 

3.2 To develop a policy to ensure the optimum composition of the Board of 

Directors ensuring a mix of knowledge, experience and expertise from diversified 

fields of knowledge i.e. Policy on Board Diversity. The Policy also intends to add 

professionalism and objectivity in the process of deciding Board membership. 
 

3.3 To lay down criteria for the evaluation of the Board. 
 



3.4 To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a Policy thereon. 
 

3.5 To formulate criteria for evaluation of Directors. 

 
 

4. Eligibility Criteria for recommending a candidate to be appointed on the Board of 

Directors. 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may consider the following parameters 

while considering the credentials of potential candidates for Directorship in the 

Company.  
 

4.1 Educational Qualification: 
 

 Possess any Graduation/ Post Graduation/ M. Phil / Doctorate 

 Possess any other Professional Qualification / Degree/ Diploma 
 

4.2 Experience / Expertise 
 

 To possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more 

fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, 

research, corporate governance, technical operations or other disciplines 

related to the Company’s business. 

 The candidate should preferably have undergone requisite training 

programme or mid - career Professional Development trainings which would 

have enabled him/her to adapt to changing dynamics of business 

environment. 
 

4.3 Disqualifications 
 

 The Candidate should not be of unsound mind. 

 The Candidate should not be an undischarged insolvent. 

 The Candidate must not have applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and 

his application must not be pending. 

 The Candidate must not have been convicted by a Court of any offence, 

whether involving moral turpitude or otherwise, and sentenced in respect 

thereof to imprisonment for not less than six (6) months. 

 There must not be any order passed by Court or Tribunal disqualifying a 

person to be appointed as a Director. 

 There should not be any calls in respect of any shares of the Company held by 

him, whether alone or jointly with others, and six months must not have 

elapsed from the last date fixed for the payment of the call. 



 The Candidate must not have been convicted of the offence dealing with 

related party transactions under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 at 

any time during the last preceding five (5) years. 

 The Candidate must be holding his Director Identification Number (DIN). 

 The Candidate is not or has not been a Director of a Company which has not 

filed Financial Statements or Annual Returns for any continuous three (3) 

financial years. 

 The Candidate is not or has not been a Director of the Company which has 

failed to repay the deposits accepted by it or pay interest thereon or to 

redeem any debentures on the due date or pay interest due thereon or pay 

any dividend declared and such failure to pay or redeem continues for one 

year or more.  

 The Candidate should not have been found guilty of any offence consisting of 

violation of Rules/ Regulations/ Legislative requirements by Customs/ Excise/ 

Income Tax Authority/ Foreign Exchange/ Other Revenue Authorities.   
 

4.4 Other Eligibility Criteria 
 

 Each director must be an individual of high personal and professional integrity 

and ethical character. 

 The candidate should have exhibited behavior that indicates he or she is 

committed to the highest ethical standards. 

 The candidate should not deprive the Company of any opportunity that 

belongs to the Company.  

 He should not be in a position of diverting the corporate opportunity for own 

benefits or to others, to the detriment of the Company.  

 The candidate must not at any time compete with the company in respect of 

any business transaction.  

 Each director must possess the ability to exercise sound business judgment on 

a broad range of issues. 

 The candidate has preferably had business, governmental, non-profit or 

professional experience at the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 

Operating Officer or equivalent policy-making and operational level of a large 

organization that indicates that the candidate will be able to make a 

meaningful and immediate contribution to the Board's discussion and 

decision-making on the array of complex issues facing a large financial 

services business. 

 The candidate has achieved prominence in his or her business, governmental 

or professional activities, and has built a reputation that demonstrates the 



ability to make the kind of important and sensitive judgments that the Board 

is called upon to make. 

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee must be satisfied that the 

candidate will effectively, consistently and appropriately take into account 

and balance the legitimate interests and concerns of all of the Company's 

shareholders and other stakeholders in reaching decisions, rather than 

advancing the interests of a particular constituency. 

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee must satisfy itself that the 

candidate will be able to devotesufficient time and energy to the performance 

of his or her duties as a Director. 
[ 

4.5 Fit and Proper Criteria. 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall undertake a process of Due 

Diligence based on the criteria of qualifications, technical expertise, track record, 

integrity etc. The basic objective of ascertaining the fit and proper criteria shall be 

to put in place an internal supervisory process on a continuing basis and to 

determine the suitability of the person for appointment / continuing to hold 

appointment as a Director on the Board of the Company. The Candidate at the 

time of appointment and at the time of the renewal of Directorship shall fill in such 

form as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to enable the 

Committee to undertake such exercise of ensuring the ‘Fit and Proper Criteria’. 
 

The Committee shall undertake such Due Diligence exercise at the time of 

appointment as well as the time of renewal of the Directorships of the incumbent. 

The indicative criteria for determining the ‘fit and proper’ criteria forms part of the 

Policy. 
 

4.6 Criteria For Independence – For Directors to be appointed as Independent 

Director on Board of the Company 
 

An independent director in relation to a company, means a director other than a 

managing director or a whole-time director or a nominee director,— 
 

(a) who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant 

expertise and experience; 
 

(b) (i) who is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company; 

(ii) who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, 

subsidiary or associate company; 
 



(c) who has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, 

subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, during the 

two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year; 
 

(d) none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with 

the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, 

or directors, amounting to two per cent. or more of its gross turnover or total 

income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, 

whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or 

during the current financial year; 
 

(e) who, neither himself nor any of his relatives— 
 

(i)  holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has 

been employee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company in any of the three financial years immediately preceding the 

financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed; 

(ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three 

financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is 

proposed to be appointed, of— 
 

(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of 

the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or 

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the 

company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to 

ten per cent. or more of the gross turnover of such firm; 

(iii) holds together with his relatives two per cent. or more of the total voting 

power of the company; or 

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any nonprofit 

organisation that receives twenty-five per cent. or more of its receipts 

from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, 

subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per cent. or more of the 

total voting power of the company; or 
 

(f) who possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed. 
 

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, “nominee director” means a director 

nominated by any financial institution in pursuance of the provisions of any law for the 

time being in force, or of any agreement, or appointed by any Government, or any 

other person to represent its interests. 

 

5. Remuneration Policy 
 

I. Board Level Remuneration Structure  
 



1. For Executive Directors (MD and Whole-Time Director) - The remuneration will be 

paid as approved from time to time subject to the approval of the Board and 

Shareholders, as the case may be, and as per the applicable provisions of Companies 

Act, 2013 and under any other Act/ Rules/ Regulations for the time being in force. 

 

 
 

2. In case of Non-Executive / Independent Directors 
 

(i) Sitting Fees – The Non-Executive/Independent Directors shall be paid sitting fees 

for attending each meeting of the Board and various Committee/s of Directors. The 

Sitting Fees may be determined/revised by the Board of Directors from time to time 

subject to the overall limits as prescribed under the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013.  
 

Presently, Sitting Fees for the Non-Executive/Independent Director is Rs. 12,000/- 

for attending each Meeting of the Board and Rs. 7,500/- for attending each Meeting 

of various Committee/s of Directors. 
 

 

II. In case of Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees –  
 

1. The pay structure of all the regular employees shall be as per the pay scale which 

was made effective w.e.f. November 1, 2013 including any amendment thereto 

from time to time. In all other cases, all the regular employees will be governed 

by IFCI Factors Ltd. Staff Regulation Policy, as amended from time to time. 
 

2. The pay structure of employees on contracts/retainership shall be decided by 

the Board of Directors from time to time. For this, reference may be drawn from 

the Reserve Bank of India pay scale (starting of the scales).  
 

The Performance Linked Incentives both for the Board and Senior Management / Other 

employees shall be as per the Board Approved scheme on recommendation of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee. 
 

 

6. Monitoring and Evaluation  
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the performance of the 

Directors and the overall Board broadly on the basis of below mentioned criteria: 
 

 Whether the Directors / Board have acted in accordance with the provisions of the 

Articles of Association of the Company. 

 The Committee shall assemble all information regarding a candidate's background and 

qualifications to determine if the candidate possesses or satisfies the minimum skills 

and qualifications that a director must possess. 



 The Committee shall evaluate a candidate's mix of skills and qualifications and 

determine the contribution the candidate could be expected to make to the overall 

functioning of the Board.  

 The Committee shall give due consideration to the overall Board balance of diversity of 

perspectives, backgrounds and experiences.  

 With respect to current directors, the Committee shall consider past attendance at 

meetings and assess the participation in and contributions to the activities of the Board. 

 Whether the Directors / Board have acted in good faith in order to promote the objects 

of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in the best interests of 

the Company, its employees, the shareholders, the Community and for the protection of 

environment. 

 Whether the Director / Board has exercised their duties with due and reasonable care, 

skill and diligence and whether the Director / Board have exercised independent 

judgment. 

 Whether the Director / Board have involved in a situation in which he / they may have a 

direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interest of the 

Company. 

 The Committee shall recommend director to the Board based on its assessment of 

overall suitability to serve on the Board in accordance with this Policy. 
 

7. Board Diversity 
 

 The Nomination and remuneration Committee shall ensure that the Board 

comprises of Directors from diversified fields of knowledge and experience. 
 

 The Board should have Directors who can add professionalism and objectivity in the 

decision making process. 
 

 The overall Board should reflect representatives from areas like finance, law, 

accountancy, economics, administration and other disciplines concerning the 

operational interests of the Company at large. 

 
 
 
 
  



Annexure-II 

Related Party Transaction Disclosure as per Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
Form No. AOC - 2(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub - section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub - section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis Nil 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length 

basis 
 

a. Name of the Related Party and nature of relationship  Mentioned in the 
note no. 33 forming 
part of the financial 
statements) 

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Banking and other normal 
business transactions 

Normal business 
transactions 
(Mentioned in the 
note no. 33 forming 
part of the financial 
statements) 

c. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions  Usually annual, 
however, depends 
on the nature of 
transaction 

d. 
 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the 
value, if any 

At arm’s length 
similar to third party 
contracts. Value of 
such transactions 
during the 
financial year is 
mentioned in the 
note no. 33 s 
forming 
part of the financial 
statements. 

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 
Competitive Pricing and Value of services rendered 
 

Competitive Pricing 
and Value of 
services rendered. 

f. 
 

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any 
 

N.A 

g. Amount paid as advances, if any 
 

As per contract 

 

                                          On behalf of the Board of Directors 
 

                                                -sd-                                       -sd- 
    New Delhi                   Sudhir Garg       Satbir Singh 

August 12, 2015                                          Director                        Managing Director           
Din: 06777363                 DIN : 06887978 

 

 



Policy on Related Party Transactions 

Introduction 

 
This Policy deals with the Related Party Transactions (RPTs) in terms of RBI 

guidelines, Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws prescribing for formulation 

of RPT Policy. 

 
Definitions 

“Associate Company”, in relation to another company, means a company in which 

that other company has significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company of 

the company having such influence and includes a joint Venture company. 

 

Explanation- For the purpose of this clause, “significant influence” means control of 

at least 20% of total share capital, or of business decisions under an agreement. 

 

“Audit Committee” or “Committee” means “Audit Committee” constituted by the 

Board of Directors of the company, from time to time, under provisions of the 

Companies Act 2013 and RBI Guidelines. 

 

“Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of IFCI Factors, as 

constituted from time to time. 

 

“Company” means IFCI Factors. 

 

“Government Company” means any company in which not less than fifty one 

percent of the paid-up share capital is held by the Central Government, or by any 

State Government or Governments, or partly by the Central Government and partly by 

one or more State Governments, and includes a company which is subsidiary company 

of such a Government Company . 

 

“Independent Director” means a director of the Company, as appointed in terms of 

Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013. 

 

“Key Managerial Personnel” in relation to a company, means- 

 

(i) The Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 

(ii) The Company Secretary; 

(iii) The Whole-time Director; 

(iv) The Chief Financial Officer; and 

(v) Such other officer of the Company as may be prescribed by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs (MCA) from time to time. 



 

“Material Transaction” If the transaction / transactions to be entered into 

individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, 

exceeds 10% of the Annual Consolidated Turnover of IFCI Factors as per the last 

audited financial statements of the Company. 

 

 

“Policy”means Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with 

Related Parties. 

 

(A) “Related Party” as per Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder,  

 

i. a director or his relative; 
 

ii. a key managerial personnel or his relative; 
 

iii. a firm, in which director, manager or his relative is a partner; 
 

iv. a private company in which a director or manager is a member or director; 

 

v. a public company  in which a director or manager is a director and holds along 

with his relatives, more than 2% of its paid-up share capital; 

 

vi. any body corporate whose Board of Directors, managing director or manager is 

accustomed to act in accordance with the advice, directions or instructions of a 

director or manager; 

 

vii. any person on whose advice, directions or instructions a director manager is 

accustomed to act: 

 

Provided that nothing in sub-clauses (vi) and (vii) shall apply to the advice, 

directions or instructions given in a professional capacity. 

 

viii. any company which is- 

 

(a) a holding, subsidiary or an associate company of such company; or  

 

(b) a subsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary; 

 

ix. A director or key managerial personnel of the holding company or his relative 

with reference to a company, shall be deemed to be a related party. 

 

 



(B)  As per the provisions of Accounting Standard: 

 

Related Party / Parties are considered to be related if at any time during the 

reporting period one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise 

significant influence over the other party in making financial and/or operating 

decisions. 

 

“Relative”, with reference to any person, means anyone who is related to another, if- 

 

(i) They are members of a Hindu Undivided Family; 

(ii) They are husband and wife; or  

(iii) One person is related to the other in such manner as may be prescribed 

 

List of relatives as per rule 4 of chapter I 

 

A person shall be deemed to be relative of another, if he or she is related to another in 

the following manner, namely:- 

 

1. Father including ‘Step-Father’ 
 

2. Mother including ‘Step-Mother’ 
 

3. Son including ‘Step-Son’ , Son’s wife. 
 

4. Daughter including  ‘Daughter’s husband’’ 
 

5. Brother including ‘Step-Brother’ 
 

6. Sister including ‘Step-Sister’ 
 

“Related Party Transactions” A Related Party Transaction is transfer of resources, 
services or obligations between IFCI Factors and a related party, regardless of 
whether a price is charged. 

 
Explanation: A “transaction” with Related Party shall be construed to include single 
transaction or a group of transactions in a contract. 

 
“Control” as per Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder and Accounting 
Standard: 

 
(A) With reference to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 

 
Control shall include the right to appoint majority of the Directors or to control the management 

or policy decisions exercisable by a person or persons acting individually or in concert, directly 



or indirectly, including by virtue of their shareholding or management rights or shareholders’ 

agreement or voting agreements or in any other manner. 

 

(B) With reference to the provisions of Accounting Standard 

 

Control has been defined as – (a) ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than one half of the 

voting power of an enterprise, or 

 

(b) Control of the composition of the Board of Directors in the case of a Company or of the 

composition of the corresponding governing body in case of any other enterprise, or 

 

(c) a substantial interest in voting and the power to direct, by statue or agreement, the financial 

and/or operating policies of the enterprise. 

 

“Joint Ventures” –  A contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an 

economic activity which is subject to joint control. 

 

Dealing with Related Party Transactions 

 
A. Approvals 
 
I. Approval by Audit Committee 
 
1. All Related Party Transactions (including any subsequent modifications 

thereof) shall require approval of the Audit Committee of Directors. However, 

the Audit Committee of Directors may grant omnibus approval for the RPTs 

proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

a. The Audit Committee may grant the omnibus approval in line with the 

policy on Related Party Transactions of IFCI Factors for the related party 

transactions. 

 

b. The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such omnibus 

approval and that such approval is in the interest of IFCI Factors. 

 

c. Such omnibus approval shall specify: 

i. The name(s) of the Related Party, nature of transaction, period of 

transaction, maximum amount of transaction that can be entered into. 

ii.   The indicative base price/current contracted price and the formula for 

variation in the price if any, and 



iii.   Such other conditions as Audit Committee may deem fit. 

d. Audit Committee shall review, on a quarterly basis, the details of RPTs 

entered into by IFCI Factors pursuant to each of the omnibus approval given. 

e. Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one 

year and shall require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year. 

Proviso: 
 
The above clause will not be applicable in the following cases: 
 
i. Transactions entered into between 2 Government Companies. and 

ii. Transactions entered into between a holding company and its wholly 

owned subsidiary whose accounts are consolidated with such holding 

company and placed before the shareholders at the general meeting for 

approval. 

 

Explanation: All entities falling under the definition of related parties shall 

abstain from voting irrespective of whether the entity is a party to the 

particular transaction or not. 

 

II.  Approval by Board of Directors 

 

Except with the consent of the Board of Directors given by a resolution at 

a meeting of the board, IFCI Factors shall not enter into any contract or 

arrangement with a related party with respect to- 

 

Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials; 

Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind; 

Leasing of property of any kind; 

Availing or rendering of any services; 

Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services 

or property; 

Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the 
company, its subsidiary company or associate company; and Related Party 
Transactions. 
 



Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the 

company: 

 

Provided  that nothing of the above shall apply to any transactions entered 

into by IFCI Factors in its ordinary course of business other than transactions 

which are not on an arm’s length basis. 

 

{Ordinary Course of Business shall include those business which forms part of 

the Main Object of the Memorandum of Association of the Company} 

 

Explanation- 

the expression “office or place of profit” means any office or place- 

Where such office or place of profit is held by a director, if the director 

holding it receives from IFCI Factors anything by way of remuneration over 

and above the remuneration to which he is entitled as director, by way of 

salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or 

otherwise; 

 

Where such office or place is held by an individual other than a director or by 

any firm, private company or other body corporate, if the individual, firm, 

private company or body corporate holding it receives from IFCI Factors  

anything by way of remuneration, salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any 

rent-free accommodation, or otherwise; 

 

The expression “arm’s length transaction” means a transaction between 

two related parties that is conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there 

is no conflict of interest. 

 

 

III.      Approval by Shareholders 

 

1. Since the Company is having paid up capital of more than 10 crore, all 

the transactions which are specified in 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

which are not in the ordinary course of business & arms length basis shall 

require approval of shareholders by way of special resolution.  

 

2. No Member of IFCI Factors shall vote on such Special Resolution, to 

approve any contract or arrangement which may be entered into by the 

company, if such member is a related party. 

 

 



Identification of Potential Related Party Transactions 

 

Identification of Potential Related Party Transactions 

 

i. Each director and Key Managerial Personnel shall be responsible for 

giving notice to the Company about any potential RPTs, he/she may be 

interested. 

 

Pre-requisites for entering into Potential Related Party Transactions 

A. Audit Committee / Board Level Pre-requisites 

 

IFCI Factors shall enter into any contract or arrangement with a related party 

subject to the following conditions, namely:- 

 

The agenda of the Board/ Audit Committee Meeting, as the case may be, at 

which the resolution is proposed to be moved shall disclose- 

 

The name of the related party and nature of relationship; 

 

The nature, duration of the contract and particulars of the contract or 

arrangement; 

 

The material terms of the contract or arrangement including the value, if 

any; 

 

Any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, if any; 

 

The manner of determining the pricing and commercial terms, both included 

as part of contract and not considered as part of the contract; 

 

Whether all factors relevant to the contract have been considered, if not, the 

details of factors not considered with the rationale for not considering those 

factors; and 

 

And other information relevant or important for the Board to take a decision 

on the proposed transaction. 

 

Where any director is interested in any contract or arrangement with a 

related party, such director shall not be present at the meeting during 

discussions on the subject matter of the resolution relating to such contract 

or arrangement-  



 

B. Shareholders’ Level Pre-requisites 

 

For approval of the shareholders, a notice calling the General Meeting will be 

sent along with the explanatory statement to the Shareholders. 

The explanatory statement to be annexed to the notice of a General Meeting 

convened for approval of the RPTs shall contain the following particulars, 

namely:- 

 

Name of the Related party; 

Name of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel who is related, if any; 

Nature of relationship; 

Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or 

arrangement; 

Any other information relevant or important for the members to take a 

decision on the proposed resolution; 

 
Transactions not previously approved  
 
In the event the Company becomes aware of an RPT that has not been approved or ratified 

under this Policy, the transaction shall be placed as promptly as practicable before the Audit 

Committee or Board or the Shareholders as may be required in accordance with this Policy for 

review and ratification. 

 
The Audit Committee or the Board shall consider all relevant facts and circumstances regarding 

such transaction and shall evaluate all options available to the Company, including but not 

limited to ratification, revision, or termination of such transaction, and the Company shall take 

such action as the Audit Committee / the Board deems appropriate under the circumstances. 

 

Disclosure Requirements 

A. Disclosure by Board of Directors 
 
Every Director shall at the first Meeting of the Board in which he participates 

as a Director and thereafter at the first Meeting of the Board in every 

Financial Year or wherever there is any change in the disclosures already 

made, then at the first Board Meeting held after such change, disclose his 

concern or interest in any company or companies or bodies corporate, firm, 

or other association of individuals which shall include the shareholding. 



 
B. Disclosure on Website of IFCI Factors 
 
IFCI Factors shall disclose the policy on dealing with Related Party 

Transactions on its website and a web-link shall be provided in the Annual 

Report of IFCI Factors. 

 
C. Disclosure in Board’s Report 
 
Every contract or arrangement entered into by IFCI Factors requiring Board’s 

and Company’s subsequent approval by way of Special resolution shall be 

referred to in the Board’s report to the shareholders along with the 

justification for entering into such contract or arrangement. 

 
Non-approval or Related Party Transactions/Violation of Provision 

related to Related Party Transactions 

 
i. Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a director or a 

KMP, without obtaining the consent of the Board or approval by a special 

resolution in the general meeting as required and if it is not ratified by the 

Board or, as the case may be, by the shareholders at a meeting within three 

months from the date on which such contract or arrangement shall be 

voidable at the option of the Audit Committee / Board and if the contract or 

arrangement is with related party to any director or a KMO, or is authorized 

by any other director concerned shall indemnify the company against any 

loss incurred by it. 

 
ii. Without prejudice to anything in the above para, it shall be open to 

IFCI Factors to proceed against a director or a KMP any other employee who 

had entered into such contract or arrangement in contravention of the 

provisions of this section for recovery of any loss sustained by it as a result of 

such contract or arrangement. 

iii. Any director or a KMP of IFCI Factors who had entered into or 

authorized the contract or arrangement in violation of the provisions of 

section 188 of the companies act 2013, in relation to RPTs may be 

punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to one year or 

with fine which shall not be less than twenty five-thousands rupees but which 

may extend to five lakh rupees, or both, in case of conviction. 



ANNEXURE-III 

     FORM MGT-9 
 

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2015 
 
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

 

Sl. No Particulars Details 

1. CIN U74899DL1995GOI074649 

2. Registration Date 14 December, 1995 

3. Name of the Company IFCI Factors Limited 

4. Category / Sub-Category of the 

Company 
Factoring & Short Term Corporate Loans 

  

5. Address of the Registered office and 

contact details 

10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New 

Delhi – 110019. Tel: 91 11 4164 2840 

Fax: +91-11-4652 1435-36 

email: samir@ifcifactors.com 

  

6. Whether listed company Yes / No Yes (Debentures of the Company are listed) 

7.  Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, 

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg, 

Bhandup (West), Mumbai 400078 

  

 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

 

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated:- 

 
 

SI. 

No 
 

 

Name and description of 

main 
products / services 

NIC code of the 

product/ service 

% to total turnover 

of the Company 

1. Factoring & Short Term Corporate 

Loans 

 

6492 100% 

 
 

 
 

mailto:samir@ifcifactors.com


 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 

 
 
S.No 

Name and 
address 
of the 
company 

CIN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate 

% of 
shares 
Held 

Applicable 
Section 

1. IFCI limited L74899DL1993GOI053677 Holding 
Company 

99.84% 2(46) of the 
Companies Act, 
2013 

 

 
IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total 

equity) 
 

I. Category-wise shareholding 
 
 

Category of 
Shareholder
s 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year 

 Demat 
 

Physical 
 

Total 
 

% of 
Total 

Shares 
 

Demat 
 

Physical 
 

Total 
 

% of 
Total 

Shares 
 

 

A.Promoters - - - - - - - - - 

(1)Indian - - - - - - - - - 

a)Individual/HU
F 

8 - 8 0.00 8 - 8 0.00 - 

b)Central 
Govt. 

- - - - - - - - - 

c)State Govt. - - - - - - - - - 

d)Bodies 
Corporate 

- - - - - - - - - 

e)Bank/FI 7,91,54,69
2 

 

- 
 

7,91,54,692 
 

99.74 
 

7,91,54,6
92 

 

- 
 

7,91,54,69
2 

 

99.74 
 

- 
 

f) Any other -  
- 

- 
 

- - - - - - 
 

SUB 

TOTAL:(A) 
(1) 

7,91,54,70

0 

- 

 

7,91,54,700 99.74 

 

7,91,54,7

00 

- 

 

7,91,54,700 99.74 

 

- 

 

(2)Foreign          

a)NRIs-
Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

b)Other 
Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

c)Bodies 
Corporate 

- - - - - - - - - 



d)Banks/FI - - - - - - - - - 

e)Any other - - - - - - - - - 

SUB 
TOTAL:(A) 
(2) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Total 
Shareholdin
g of 
Promoter 
(A)= 
(A)(1)+(A)(
2) 

7,91,54,70
0 

- 
 

7,91,54,700 99.74 
 

7,91,54,7
00 

- 
 

7,91,54,700 99.74 
 

- 
 

B.PUBLIC 
SHAREHOLDI
NG 

         

(1)Institutions - - - - - - - - - 

a)Mutual 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

b)Banks/FI  - - - - - - - - - 

c)Central 
Govt. 

- - - - - - - - - 

d)State Govt. - - - - - - - - - 

e)Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f)Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

g)FIIs - - - - - - - - - 

h)Foreign 
Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i)Other Specify - - - - - - - - - 

SUB TOTAL 
(B) (1): 

- - - - - - - - - 

(2)Non 
Institutions 

         

a)Bodies 
Corporate 

- 90,000 90,000 0.11 
 

- 90,000 90,000 0.11 
 

- 

i)Indian - - - - - - - - - 

ii)Overseas - - - - - - - - - 

b)Individuals - - - - - - - - - 

i)Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital upto 
Rs. 1 Lakh 

- 80,000 80,000 0.10 - 80,000 80,000 0.10  

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 

33,000 - 33,000 0.04 33,000 - 33,000 0.04  



nominal share 

capital in 
excess of Rs. 
1 Lakh 

c)Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

SUB TOTAL 
(B) (2): 

33,000 1,70,000 2,03,000 0.25 33,000 1,70,000 2,03,000 0.25 - 

Total Public 
Shareholdin
g 
(B)=(B)(1)+(
B)(2) 

33,000 1,70,000 2,03,000 0.25 33,000 1,70,000 2,03,000 0.25 - 

C. Shares 
held by 
Custodian 
for GDRs & 

ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

7,91,87,70
0 

1,70,000 7,93,57,700 100 7,91,87,7
00 

1,70,000 7,93,57,700 100 - 

 
II. Shareholding of Promoters 

 
Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Share holding at the end of the year  

 No. of Shares % of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

%of Shares 

Pledged/ 

encumbered to 

total shares 

No. of Shares % of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged/ 

encumbered to 

total shares 

% 

change in 

share 

holding 

during 

the year  

IFCI Limited* 7,91,54,700 99.74% - 7,91,54,700 99.74% - - 

Total 7,91,54,700 99.74% - 7,91,54,700 99.74% - - 

 

*Including 8 shares held by nominees of IFCI Ltd. 

Sl. 
No. 

 Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year 

  No. of Shares % of total shares of 
the company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total shares 
of the company 

i. At the beginning of the year 7,91,54,700 99.74% No change 

ii. Date wise Increase/Decrease 

In Promoters Share Holding 

during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease 

(e.g. allotment/ 
Transfer/bonus/sweat equity 

etc)   

- - No change 



 (iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

 

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and 
Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

 
S 
N
o. 

Name of 
Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year as on 
01.04.2014 

Change in shareholding 
during the year 

Shareholding at the end 
of the year as on 
31.3.2015 

  No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the company 

1. IFCI Limited 79154692 99.74 Nil Nil 79154692 99.74 

2. Puri Constructions Pvt 
Ltd. 

90000 0.11 Nil Nil 90000 0.11 

3. Mr. Brij Kapoor 33000 0.04 Nil Nil 33000 0.04 

4. Mr. Sushant Chabra 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01 

5. Mr. Sanjay Kumar 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01 

6. Mr. Vijay Roop Chand 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01 

7. Mr. Daljit Singh 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01 

8. Mrs. Deep Kaur 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01 

9. Mr. GP Singh 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01 

10
. 

Mr. Amit Vadhera 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01 

11
. 

Mr. A.K. Mehta 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01 

12
. 

Mr. Bal  Krishna Jaggi 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01 

13
. 

Mr. Rishi Talwar 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01 

 

 
 
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 
Sl. 

No. 

 Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

 For Each of the Directors & 

KMP* 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company 

No.of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company 

1. At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL 

2. Date wise Increase/Decrease 
in Share holding during the 

year specifying the reasons for 

Increase/Decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/swea

t equity etc.) 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

iii. At the end of the year 7,91,54,700 99.74% No change 



 
(vi) Indebtedness 

 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment                   (Amount in Rs.) 

 

 
VI. Remuneration of Directors And Key Managerial Personnel 

 
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

 

 
Name of Managing Director : Mr. BikashKanti Roy  

Sr. 
No 

Particulars of Remuneration Amount in 
Rs. 

1 Gross Salary  

 1(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

 

23,30,080 

 1(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 8,96,384 

 
 
 

Secured Loans 

excluding 

deposits  

Unsecured Loans 

 

Deposits  

 

Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year (01.04.2014) 

i) Principal Amount 4,75,61,89,669 2,22,72,68,783 - 6,98,34,58,452 

ii) Interest due but  
not paid 

- - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not 

due 

10,89,55,718 1,192,20,548 - 22,81,76,266 

TOTAL (i+ii+iii)  4,86,51,45,387 2,34,64,89,331 - 7,21,16,34,718 

Change in Indebtedness 
during the financial  
year 

    

Addition - - - - 

Reduction 77,57,90,946 5,247,09,006 - 13,004,99,952 

Exchange Difference - - - - 

Net Change 77,57,90,946 52,47,09,006  13,004,99,952 

Indebtedness at the end of 
the financial year 
(31.03.2015) 

    

i) Principal Amount 4,00,41,64,269 1,74,60,32,386  5,75,01,96,655 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not 
due 

851,90,172 7,57,47,939 - 16,09,38,111 

TOTAL (i+ii+iii) 4,08,93,54,441 1,82,17,80,325 - 5,91,11,34,766 



 1(c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 2,46,597 

2  Stock Option   - 

3  Sweat Equity  - 

4  Commission - 

  -as a % of profit - 

  -others (specify) - 

5  Others, please specify : Retirement Benefits  10,801 

  Total 3,483,862 

 
Total Managerial Remuneration Rs. 34,83,862 

Overall Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 60,00,000 

 
B.  Remuneration to other directors:          (Amount in Rs.) 

 

S 

No. 

Name of the Directors Fee for attending 

board/ 

committee 
meetings 

Commission Total 

1. Mr. Shrawan Nigam 2,17,500 - 2,17,500 

2. Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta 2,47,500 - 2,47,500 

3. Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb 

 

2,76,000 - 2,76,000 

4. Mr. Sudhir Garg * 3,60,000 - 3,60,000 

4. Mr. Rajib Sekhar Sahoo 51,000 - 51,000 

5. Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay 31,500 - 31,500 

 
*Sitting fees is being paid to IFCI Ltd. 

 
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD : 
 

         (Amount in Rs.) 

Sr. 

No 

Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel  

Chief Financial 

Officer (CFO) 
(Mr. Lalit Bansal) 

Company 

Secretary 
(CS) 

(Mr. Rajiv L. 
Jha)* 

Company 

Secretary (CS) 
(Mr. Ankur 

Agarwal) ** 

1. Gross Salary    

 1(a)  Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

 

10,37,032 

 

5,15,488 57,250 

 1(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961 

1,88,073 1,40,810 27,193 



 1(c)  Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

   

2  Stock Option - - - 

3  Sweat Equity - - - 

4  Commission - - - 

  -as a % of profit - - - 

  -others (specify) - - - 

5  Others, please specify : 

Retirement Benefits 

- - - 

  Total 12,25,105 6,56,298 84,443 

 
*Mr. Rajiv L. Jha resigned w.e.f. September 19, 2014 

**Mr. Ankur Agarwal resigned w.e.f. July 16, 2015 
 
 

VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES UNDER COMPANIES 

ACT,2013: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Type Section of 

the 

Companies 

Act 

Brief 

Description  

Details of 

Penalty/ 

Punishment/ 

Compounding 

fees imposed  

Authority 

[RD / 

NCLT/ 

COURT]  

Appeal 

made, if 

any (give 

Details) 

 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty  - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty  - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty  - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 



ANNEXURE-IV 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY - OVERVIEW 
 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, 

a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by 

the Company, which has been approved by the Board. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the 

Company’s website at the link: http://www.ifcifactors.com/investors.html. 

 
In line with the CSR policy and in accordance of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Company shall undertake the Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as defined under the 

Schedule VII to the Act. 

 
 
The main objectives of CSR Policy are: 
 

(i) To directly or indirectly take up programs that benefit the communities in and around its 

workplace and results, over a period of time, in enhancing the quality of life and economic 

well-being of the local populace.  

(ii) To generate through its CSR initiatives, a community goodwill for your Company and help 

reinforce a positive & socially responsible image of your Company as a corporate entity and 

as a good Corporate Citizen. 

(iii) Ensure commitment at all levels in the organization, to operate its business in an 

economically, socially and environmentally sustainable manner, while recognizing the 

interest of all its stakeholders. 

 
The terms of reference of the CSR Committee is as under: 
 
(i) To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 

which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in 

Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013; 

(ii) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to 

in clause (i) above; and 

(iii) To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to 

time. 

 
Composition of CSR Committee 
 
Members of the committee are: 
 
Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb, Independent Director as Chairman 
Mr. Sudhir Garg, Non-Independent Director as Member 
Mr. Satbir Singh, Managing Director as Member 

http://www.ifcifactors.com/investors.html


 
Average net profits and prescribed CSR expenditure: 
 
The average net profits and prescribed CSR expenditure is as detailed below: 
 
 

Particulars  Rs. in crore 

Average net profits for last three financial 

years 
31.37 

Prescribed CSR expenditure 0.62 

 
Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2014-15: 

 
Particulars  Rs. in crore 

Total amount to be spent for the year: 0.62 

Amount unspent 0.62 

 
 
Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: 
 

S. 
No. 

CSR project or 
activity 
identified 

Sector in 
which 
the 
Project is 
covered 

Projects/ 
Programmes 
 
1. Local area/ 
others 
2. Specify the 
state and district 
where project/ 
Proggramme was 
undertaken 

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
project or 
Programme 
wise 
(in Rs.) 
 
 

Amount spent 
on the 
project/ 
programme 
 
1.Direct 
expenditure 
on project or 
programmes 
 
2.Overheads 
(in Rs.) 

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto to the 
reporting 
period 
 
(in Rs.) 

Amount spent: 
 
Direct/ 
through 
implementing 
agency* 

1.  As per Schedule 
VII to the 
Companies Act, 
2013 

- - - - - - 

 

In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net 

profits of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall 

provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Boards’ Report 

 

In terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, 2% of the Average Net Profit of the last 

3 (three) financial years of your Company is Rs.0.62 crore. However, during the year, your 

Company could not spend any amount owing to losses incurred by the Company.  Your 



Company has therefore deferred the contribution for the financial year 2014-15 towards 

the CSR Activities.  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies Rules (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, Mr. Satbir Singh, Managing Director and Mr. Ajoy Kumar 

Deb, Chairman of CSR Committee, do confirm that the implementation and monitoring of 

CSR policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the Company. 

 

The main objectives of CSR Policy are: 

 

(i) To directly or indirectly take up programs that benefit the communities in and 

around its workplace and results, over a period of time, in enhancing the quality of 

life and economic well-being of the local populace.  

(ii) To generate through its CSR initiatives, a community goodwill for your Company and 

help reinforce a positive & socially responsible image of your Company as a 

corporate entity and as a good Corporate Citizen.  

(iii) Ensure commitment at all levels in the organization, to operate its business in an 

economically, socially and environmentally sustainable manner, while recognizing the 

interest of all its stakeholders  

 
The terms of reference of the CSR Committee is as under: 

 
i) To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as 
specified in Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013; 

ii) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities 
referred to in clause (i) above; and 

iii) To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time 
to time. 

 
 
 
 

-sd-    -sd- 
                     Satbir Singh             Ajoy Kumar Deb 

Managing Director           Chairman of the CSR Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Annexure V 

 

Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of IFCI Factors Limited for the 

year ended 31st March 2015. 

 
The preparation of financial statements of IFCI Factors Limited for the year ended 31st March 

2015 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 

2013 is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed 

by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India  under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for 

expressing opinion on the Financial Statements under section 143 of the Act based on 

Independent Audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their audit report dated 11 

May, 2013. 

 
I, on behalf of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct the 

supplement audit of the financial statements of IFCI Factors Limited for the year ended 31 

March 2015 and as such have no comments to make under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act. 

 
 

For and on the behalf  
 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India 
 

(Suparna Deb) 
 

Principal Director of Commercial Audit 
& Ex-offico member, Audit Board-II, 

New Delhi 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date : 28.05.2015 
 
  



 

                           Form No. MR-3                  Annexure VI 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

For The Financial Year Ended on 31st March, 2015 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

 

The Members, 

IFCI Factors Limited 

10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 

61, Nehru Place, 

New Delhi - 110019 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by IFCI Factors Limited (hereinafter called the 

“company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 

for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 

thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 

company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during  the  audit period 

covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance 

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 

according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder; 



(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 

and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): — 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the 

Audit Period); 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme 

and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable to 

the Company during the Audit Period); 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 

with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

and  

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 

Regulations, 1998 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(vi) The other laws which are applicable specifically to the Company are as under: 

1. The Factoring Regulation Act, 2011 read with Non Banking Financial (non 

deposit accepting or holding) Companies prudential norms (Reserve Bank) 



Directions, 2007, Non Banking Financial Auditors Report(Reserve Bank) 

Directions 2008 and Non-Banking Financial Company – Factor (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2012;  
 

2. RBI Circular bearing Ref. RBI / 2012 - 13 / 319  DNBS . CC . PD . No . 312 / 03 

.10.01/2012-13 dated December 07, 2012;  

3. Circulars/guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India and other laws applicable 

to the Company  
 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (Not 

applicable to the Company during the financial year 2014-15).  

(ii)  The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange. 

During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standard, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that:  

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

and Non- executive directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the act. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent adequately in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 

for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decisions are carried out with the unanimous consent, so therefore dissenting 

members’ views are not required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period the company has: 



(i) Taken the approval of Members to borrow money in excess of Paid-up Capital & free 

reserves and to create a charge on the assets of the Company in lieu of the money 

borrowed up to Rs. 1,500 Crores as per Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(ii) Taken approval from the members for the issuance of securities of the company 

including but not limited to Bonds and Non-convertible Debentures of the Company 

up to an amount not exceeding Rs. 500 (Rupees Five Hundred Crore only) in the year 

commencing from the date of approval by members. 

(iii) Issued and allotted 7,50,38,000 (seven crore fifty lakh thirty eights thousand) 9% 

Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (CCCPS) at on Right Basis. 

 

 

 

Place: Delhi                                           Arun Kumar Gupta 

Date: 12/08/2015                                            Arun Gupta & Associates 

                                                                       ACS NO.21227 

                                                                       CP NO: 8003 
 
 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE 

A’ and forms an integral part of this report. 

 

  



“ANNEXURE A” 

 

To, 

 

The Members, 

IFCI Factors Limited 

10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 

61, Nehru Place, 

New Delhi - 110019 
 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Management’s Responsibility 

1. The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of 

secretarial records and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of applicable laws and regulations. 

2. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, 

devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and 

procedure followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s 

management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

Disclaimer  

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the Company.  

 

Place: Delhi                                                                        Arun Kumar Gupta 

Date: 12/082015                                             Arun Gupta & Associates 

                                                                        ACS NO.21227 

                                                                        CP NO: 8003 



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of better transparency 

and accountability in all facets of operations and all its interactions with its stakeholders including 

shareholders, employees, bankers and the auditors. The Company constantly endeavors to achieve 

standards of Corporate Governance in order to enhance the long term stakeholders’ value and 

maintain good Corporate Governance. The Company has well established, transparent and fair 

administrative set up to provide for professionalism and accountability. 
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 

(A) Composition, Category and Attendance of the Board of Directors 
[ 

As on March 31, 2015, the Board of the Company consisted of 8 (eight) Directors, out of whom 

5 are Independent Directors including the Woman Director, 2 (two) Directors are Non-Executive 

while 1 (one) is Executive Director being the Managing Director.  

 
The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013. The composition 
of the Board, number of Board Meetings held, attendance of the Directors at the Board 
Meetings and last Annual General Meeting and the number of Directorship and Chairmanship/ 
Membership of Committees in other Companies in respect of each Director as on March 31, 
2015 is reproduced here-in below: 
 

Sl 

No. 

Name of 

Director 

Category Attendance Particulars No. of Directorships/ Committee 

Memberships/ Chairmanships 

of Other Companies 

No. of Board Meetings 

during the year 2014-15 

At AGM 

held on 
September 

10, 2014 

Other 

directorship
s 

Committee 

Membership
s 

Committe

e 
Chairman

ships 

Held Attende
d 

    

1. Mr. Malay 

Mukherjee 

Non-

Executive 
Chairman 

9 9 Yes 6 - - 

2. Mr. Sudhir Garg Non-

Executive 
Director 

9 9 Yes 5 1 - 

3. Mr. Shrawan 

Nigam 

Non-

Executive- 
Independent 

Director 

9 5 No 1 - - 

4. Mr. Vinod 

Kumar Gupta 

Non-

Executive- 

9 7 No - - - 



Independent 

Director 

 5. Mr. Ajoy Kumar 
Deb 

Non-
Executive- 

Independent 
Director 

9 8 Yes 3 2  

6. Mr. Rajib 

Sekhar Sahoo*  

Non-

Executive- 
Independent 

Director 

6 3 No 1 - - 

7. Mrs. Bandana 
Mukhopadhyay 

(**) 

Non-
Executive- 

Independent 
Director 

2 2 N.A. - - - 

8. Mr. Bikash 

Kanti Roy*** 

Managing 

Director 

9 9 Yes - - - 

 

 

*Mr. Rajib Sekhar Sahoo was appointed w.e.f. 13/08/2014 

**Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay was appointed w.e.f. 12/03/2015 

***Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased to be the Director w.e.f. August 10, 2015 and Mr. Satbir Singh 

was appointed as Managing Director w.e.f. August 10, 2015. 

Notes: 
a. Number of Meetings represents the Meetings held during the period in which the Director 

was Member of the Board. 

b. The details of Committee Memberships considered for the purpose are those prescribed 

under the DPE Guidelines viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of 

all companies in which he is a director.  

c. None of the Directors of the Company were members of more than 10 committees or                 

acted as Chairperson of more than 5 committees across all Public Limited Companies in 

which they were Directors. 

d. None of the Directors held directorship in more than 10 Public Limited Companies 

e. None of the Directors were related to any Director or were a member of an extended family. 

f. None of the Independent Directors of the Company served as Independent Director in more 

than 7 listed companies. 
 

The Board met nine times in financial year 2014-2015  viz., on April 15, 2014, July 18, 2014, 

August 13, 2014, September 16, 2014, November 05, 2014, January 23, 2015, February 16, 2015, 

March 12, 2015 & March 31, 2015. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not 

exceed 120 days. 

 

 
 



Brief resume of the Director seeking re-appointment  

Mr. Malay Mukherjee aged 60 years is a post graduate in Physics is on the Board of the Company 

since December 26, 2013. He joined Indian Bank as Probationary Officer in 1976 and has more 

than 35 years of experience in the Banking Industry. 

Mr. Mukherjee has a wide field exposure, having worked in various branches in Assam, Bihar, West 

Bengal, Maharashtra, Gujarat, New Delhi, as Branch Manager in Indian Bank. He had also worked 

in Risk Management Department and Technology Management Department of Indian Bank at its 

Corporate Office. 

As Zonal Manager of Bangalore and Delhi Zones and General Manager of Kolkata Zone of Indian 

Bank, he headed operations of branches in West Bengal, Sikkim, Andaman & Nicobar, Delhi NCR, 

Karnataka and Goa. He has attended various training programmes – both internal and external in 

India and abroad. He is widely travelled in India and abroad.  

Mr. Mukherjee took over as Executive Director of Central Bank of India in November, 2012 and 

overseen the portfolios such as Credit, HR, General Administration, IT, Corporate Communications, 

Publicity, Marketing, Client coverage and New Initiatives etc. 

He is a CEO & Managing Director in IFCI Ltd. and director in IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited, 

IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited, Tourism Finance Corporation of India Limited, IFCI 

Financial Services Limited, Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited. He is the Member of 

Entrepreneurship Development Institute of India and Chairman of Management Development 

Institute and Institute of Leadership Development. He is the Chairman of Executive Committee, 

Risk Management Committee, Review Committee on Wilful Defaulters, Committee of Directors 

Public Issue of Bonds and Member of HR Committee, Recovery & NPA Management Committee of 

IFCI Limited. He does not hold any securities in his own name and no share or convertible 

instrument in the Company is held by him, either in his name or in the name of any other person, 

on a beneficial basis. 

Brief resumes of Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay, Director and Mr.Satbir Singh, Managing Director is 

included in the Statement to the Notice calling the Annual General Meeting. 

 AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 

A. TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee was approved & noted by the Board in its meeting 

held on July 18, 2014 & the Committee shall examine the financial statement and the auditors’ 

report thereon, to approve or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with 

related parties, scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments, valuation of undertakings or 

assets of the company, wherever it is necessary, to evaluate internal financial controls and risk 

management systems, to review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and 



effectiveness of audit process and to recommend for appointment, remuneration and terms of 

appointment of auditors of the Company. 
 

 

B. COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE 

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The composition of the Audit 
Committee and attendance of Directors at the Meetings (as on March 31, 2015) is shown 
below: 
 

Name/ category Position in 

Audit 

Committee 

No. of meetings during the FY 2014-15 

Held Attended 

Mr. Rajib Sekhar Sahoo 

Independent Director 

Chairman 2 1 

Mr. Shrawan Nigam 

Independent Director 

Member 4 2 

Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta 

Independent Director 

Member 

 

3 2 

Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb 

Independent Director 

Member 4 4 

Mr. Sudhir Garg 

Independent Director 

Member 4 4 

Note: Number of Meetings represents, Meetings held during the period in which the Director 

was Member of the Committee. 

 

The Audit Committee met 4 times during the year 2014-15 at regular intervals (15th April, 2014, 
18th July, 2014, 05th Nov., 2014 & 23rd January, 2015) and not more than four months lapsed 
between two consecutive meetings of the Audit Committee. 

 
3. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 

A. TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The terms of reference of nomination and remuneration committee is identifying persons who 

are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed as Key Managerial Persons (KMP) 

as per criteria laid down and recommending to the Board their appointment and removal, 

evaluating the performance of every director and to formulate the criteria for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director/ KMP. 

 
B. COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The composition of the Nomination 

and Remuneration committee and attendance of Directors at the Meetings (as on March 31, 

2015) is shown below: 



Name/ category Position in Audit 

Committee 

No. of meetings during the 

FY 2014-15 

Held Attended 

Mr. Vinod K. Gupta 
Independent Director 

Chairman          9           7 

Mr. Shrawan Nigam 
Independent Director 

Member           9           4 

Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb 
Independent Director 

Member 4 2 

Mr. Sudhir Garg 
Non-Executive Director 

Member          9             9 

Note: Number of Meetings represents, Meetings held during the period in which the Director 

was Member of the Committee. 

During the year, nine meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on July 

10, 2014, July 31, 2014, September 12, 2014, September 16, 2014, January 15, 2014, February 

26, 2015, March 04, 2015, March 12, 2015 and March 30, 2015. 

 

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

The Board of Directors, in compliance of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, 

constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee at their meeting held on August 

13, 2014.  

A. TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is to recommend the 

amount of expenditure to be incurred on the prescribed activities and to monitor the Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time. 

B. COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility committee and attendance of Directors 

at the Meetings (as on March 31, 2015) is shown below: 

Sl. No. Name of Director Category No. of meetings during 
 the FY 2014-15 

   Held Attended 

1. Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb Chairman 2 2 

2. Mr. Sudhir Garg Member 2 2 

3. *Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy Member 2 2 

 



During the Financial Year 2014-15, the CSR Committee of Directors met on July 31, 2014 & 
December 04, 2014. 

 

***Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased to be the Director w.e.f. August 10, 2015 and his place    Mr. 

Satbir Singh, Managing Director is a Member of the Committee.  

 

5. INVESTOR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE  

The Company has constituted investor grievance committee to address the concerns, 

complaints of the investors of the Company. The Members of the Committee are Mr. Vinod 

Kumar Gupta and *Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy. During the year no meeting of the Committee was 

held. No complaints/grievances were received from the Shareholders during the year. 

* Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased to be the Director w.e.f. August 10, 2015 and his place               

Mr. Satbir Singh, Managing Director is a Member of the Committee. 

 

6. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

The Board of Directors of your Company monitors the risk management strategy of the 

Company through the Risk Committee. The Members of the Committee are Prof. Vinod K. 

Gupta, Chairman, Mr. Shrawan Nigam, Member, Mr. Ajoy K. Deb, Member and *Mr. Bikash 

Kanti Roy, Member. 

 

 

*Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased to be the Director w.e.f. August 10, 2015 and his place Mr. Satbir 

Singh, Managing Director is a Member of the Committee. 

 

7. GENERAL BODY MEETING 

A. Date, Venue and Time for the last three General Body Meetings: 

AGM for the 
FY 

Date & time of AGM Venue of the AGM 

2013-14 10th Sept., 2014/ 11.00 A.M. IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-
110019 

2012-13 30th Sept., 2013/ 11.00 A.M. IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-
110019 

2011-12 06th July, 2012/ 11 A.M. IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-
110019 

 

 



B. Details of Special Resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General 

Meetings: 

AGM Date As per Companies 
Act 

Particulars of Special Resolutions 

06/07/2012 - - 

30/09/2013 - Scrapping of Employees stock option scheme of the 
Company  

10/09/2014 u/s 180(1)(a) Sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or 
substantially whole of the undertaking of the 
Company 

 u/s 180(1)(c) Increasing the borrowing powers of the Company 
exceeding paid up capital & free reserves  

 u/s 42, 72 Invitation to subscribe to securities by way of private 
placement  

 

8. DISCLOSURES:  
 

(i) Transaction with the related party during the period 
 

The Company did not enter into material transactions with the related parties that may 

potentially conflict with the interests of the Company at large during the year under review 

further all the related party transactions were in the ordinary course of business & arm length 

price & have been disclosed in the Balance Sheet of the Company. 
 

(ii) There has been no non-compliance by IFCI Factors nor any penalties imposed on the 

Company by any authorities. 

 
(iii) The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy duly approved by the Board, which has been 

circulated to all the employees of the Company and also placed on the website 

www.ifcifactors.com of the Company.  Further, it is affirmed that no personnel has been 

denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 

(iv) During the year, no expenditure has been debited in the books of accounts which are 

not for the purposes of business. 

 

(v) During the year, no expenses which are of personal nature have been incurred for the 

Board of Directors and top management. 

 

(vi) Administrative and Office Expenses during the year is 7.79% of the total expenses as 

against 6.75% last year. Increase in administrative expenses is mainly on account of 

increase in travelling expenses, Legal and Professional expenses, rent and repair & 



maintenance expenses etc.  Further, the Financial Expenses are 86.09% of the total 

expenses as against 86.98% last year. 

 

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

The Annual Report and other statutory information are being sent to shareholders.  

In compliance of the provisions of Listing Agreement of Debt Securities, the financial results of 

the company are generally published in Financial Express newspaper. 

10.   AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

The comments on accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2015 by the Comptroller & Auditors 

General of India under section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 are placed in the Annual 

report. 

11.   TRAINING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 

The Company furnishes a set of documents to the directors & informs them about the important 

data regarding recent developments about the performance of the Company, industry scenario 

& regulatory changes. 

 

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

a) As per the notice attached to this Annual Report, the Annual General Meeting of the 

Company will be held on (Date of AGM). 

b) The Financial Year of the Company is from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2015. 

 

13.  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Section on Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this report. 

  



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
 
ECONOMY OVERVIEW  
  
India’s economy has witnessed a significant economic growth in the recent past, growing by 7.3 

per cent in 2015 as against 6.9 per cent in 2014. The size of the Indian economy is estimated 

to be at Rs 129.57 trillion (US$ 2.01 trillion) for the year 2014 compared to Rs 118.23 trillion 

(US$ 1.84 trillion) in 2013. The steps taken by the government in recent times have shown 

positive results as India's gross domestic product (GDP) at factor cost at constant (2011-12) 

prices 2014-15 is Rs 106.4 trillion (US$ 1.596 trillion), as against Rs 99.21 trillion (US$ 1.488 

trillion) in 2013-14, registering a growth rate of 7.3 per cent. The economic activities which 

witnessed significant growth were ‘financing, insurance, real estate and business services’ at 

11.5 per cent and ‘trade, hotels, transport, communication services’ at 10.7 per cent. According 

IMF World Economic Outlook April, 2015, India ranks seventh globally in terms of GDP at 

current prices and is expected to grow at 7.5 per cent in 2016. 

 

Road Ahead 

 
The International Monetary Fund (IMF) and the Moody’s Investors Service have forecasted that 

India will witness a GDP growth rate of 7.5 per cent in 2016, due to improved investor 

confidence, lower food prices and better policy reforms. Besides, according to mid-year update 

of United Nations World Economic Situation and Prospects, India is expected to grow at 7.6 per 

cent in 2015 and at 7.7 per cent in 2016. 

 
As per the latest Global Economic Prospects (GEP) report by World Bank, India is leading The 

World Bank’s growth chart for major economies. The Bank believes India to become the fastest 

growing major economy by 2015, growing at 7.5 per cent. 

Furthermore, initiatives like Make in India and Digital India will play a vital role in the driving the 

Indian economy. 

 
Industry Structure and Developments / Factoring Overview 
 
The global Factoring Market stands at over USD 3 Trillion. Over the 5 year period, Factoring 

volumes have grown at 15% per annum since the Global Financial crisis. International Factoring 

volumes have growth rate stands at CAGR of 24.8% vs. growth rate of 13.1% for Domestic 

Factoring.  

The above figures underline a paradigm shift in International Trade of increased preference to 

trade under Open Account terms especially from the suppliers in the developing economies, 

pushed by major retailers / importers in the developed world. Interestingly, China has played a 

key role in this resounding growth story over the 5 years to reach the number one Factoring 

market which coincides with the growth of Chinese economy especially as the manufacturing 

hub of the world. 



As per FCI, Central Bankers across the world have noticed the growing trend and have 

appreciated the Factoring Product as safe and secure means of financing open account trade. 

Indeed, Governments are increasingly noticing the important role played by Factors in financing 

SMEs, which are the engines of growth for most economies across the globe. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Global Factoring Volumes: 5 years  

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Indian Factoring Landscape 

1.1 Competitive Landscape 

 

The factoring business in India is still in nascent stage. Although CanBank, SBI Factors, 

Foremost Factors Ltd (now IFCI Factors Ltd) has been in existence since late 1990s, the 

volumes have been low initially, and started to pick only after 2005. India constitutes 0.17% of 

the world Factoring volume and 0.06% of total bank credit, which is insignificant compared to 

other developing economies1.  

Presently, there are multiple entities / Banks in India providing Factoring Services of which 5 

are NBFCs of which 3 are bank / FI owned. There are other NBFCs offering Factoring products 

as one of the product amongst other Lending products. Many of the banks also offer Factoring 

product, however, it’s a part of structured trade finance and sold as a part of other working 

capital finance facilities. This has been the legacy way of offering factoring product in Indian 

Financial sector.  

The competition under Factoring can be broken down in to three sub-segments, i.e. 1) Direct 

competitors as NBFC-Factors, 2) Banks and 3) other NBFCs. 

1) NBFC-Factors: The direct competitors of IFCI Factors Ltd are SBI Global Factors, 

Canbank Factors, and India Factoring & Finance Solutions Pvt Ltd. Of these, SBI Global 

and Canbank Factors are owned by Indian Public Sector Banks / Financial Institutions. 

                                                           
1
 Intellecap and World Factoring year book 2012. 

Domestic International Total

2009 1,639.4    226.3                1,865.8    

2010 1,934.8    339.5                2,274.2    

2011 2,402.6    378.1                2,780.7    

2012 2,455.0    487.1                2,942.2    

2013 2,522.6    556.1                3,078.8    

 -

 1,000.0

 2,000.0

 3,000.0

 4,000.0

International

Domestic



As is wont with Indian Public Sector undertakings, these Factors are relatively less 

aggressive players with more direction from the parent PSU Banks. The focus is on 

relatively risk free LC discounting segment.  

 

2) Banks: The primary target market for the Banks offering Factoring products is the 

creamy segment of the markets, i.e. the MNCs, Large Corporates. They offer Factoring 

product under a package of complete working capital finance facilities. Factoring is 

usually covered as a risk mitigation product from Bank’s credit risk perspective. Many a 

times, Factoring is used as a solution for balance sheet management tool for the large 

corporates during the quarterly, half-yearly, yearly financial closing as a way of portfolio 

buyouts for short term duration. 

 

3) Other NBFCs: The other NBFCs are usually subsidiaries of large industrial houses and 

offer Factoring / Supply Chain Financing solution primarily catering to the captive 

market, i.e. parent’s value chain (vendors / buyers). The risk for these NBFCs is 

relatively mitigated due to dependency of these vendors / buyers on the parent 

industrial house. However, with the near saturation in the captive market and post 

various enablers being bought in by the regulators, these NBFCs are trying to ramp up 

Factoring business and could move to be direct competition for IFCI Factors Ltd. 

The broad competitive numbers is available under Annexure 1.  

1.2 Indian Legal Landscape – enablers for Factoring 

Before the enactment of the Factoring Act 2011 (Act), Banks / NBFCs were allowed to offer 

factoring product under the overall regulations of RBI as applicable to Banks / lending NBFC. 

However, with the enactment of the Factoring Act in 2011 and introduction of new class of 

NBFC as a Factor, the industry seems to be waking up to the potential of Factoring business. 

Moreover, as a way of easing access to finance for the MSME category of clients, RBI has 

recently, invited applications from Banks / non-Banks Financial Institutions for setting up an 

electronic exchange for discounting of receivables called, Trade Receivables Discounting System 

(TReDS).  

To briefly summarize, Act has been the first attempt to initiate and provide a comprehensive 

regulatory and operating framework for the Factors.  The key enablers from the Factoring Act 

2011: 

1) Registration of Factor: NBFCs whose principal business is Factoring (recently revised to 

50%), need to register with RBI as a Factor.  

 

2) Assignment of Receivables:  

 Act requires Notice of Assignment (NOA) to be served to /accepted by the 

debtor, without which assignee shall not be entitled to demand payment of the 

receivables from the debtor. 



 In case no NOA is served to / accepted by the debtor, any payment made by the 

debtor to the seller shall be held in trust for the benefit of the assignee and paid 

over to the assignee. This is implemented by way of entering in to collection 

agency agreement between the seller and the Factor or by opening a collections 

escrow account in the name of seller but managed and operated by the Factor.  

 

3) Registry of Receivables:  

 Factors are required to register all the discounted / factored receivables 

(invoices) with the centralized registry, i.e. CERSAI which has been set up under 

the SARFEASI Act 2002, within a period of thirty days from the date of such 

assignment/ discounting. 

 On realization of the assigned receivables, the Factor is required to file 

satisfaction of the assignment of receivables. 

 

4) Stamp Duty:  

 Factors are exempted from paying Stamp Duty, which hitherto was applicable on 

Assignment of receivables.  

Although relatively nascent, these enablers are expected to make Factoring as a means of 

working capital finance more competitive vs. traditional banking products. These initial legal 

enablers have even created awareness with the clients about the Factoring products which were 

absent earlier.  

Other key legal enablers, i.e. bringing NBFC Factors under the SARFESAI, initiative for setting 

up a Credit Guarantee Fund of Rs. 500 Crore for factoring business as announced in the Union 

Budget for FY 2013-14, pari-passu charge with working capital bankers are expected to 

gradually evolve and bring level playing field for the Factors. All these developments are 

indicators that factoring business in India is poised for growth in the times to come.  

Annexure 1. 
 

 

   
Rs. In lakhs 

Factoring Entity  Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
& surplus Revenue PBT PAT 

Canbank Factors 
Ltd 

FYE’14 2000 17415.71 8036.39 1607.47 1060.06 

FYE’13 2000 16589.64 9563.69 2617.11 1860.56 

FYE’12 2000 15312.82 11811.83 2549.82 1685.96 

            

SBI Global 
Factors Ltd 

FYE’14 15989 20830 12346 -4031 -5697 

FYE’13 15989 26528 21962 1038 363 

FYE’12 15989 26164 28450 -9044 -6573 

            

India Factoring & 
Finance Solutions 

FYE’14 18000 872.58 11003.25 586.04 387.12 

FYE’13 18000 485.46 10201.2 306.16 267.65 



Pvt Ltd FYE’12 13500 217.81 6309.91 803.63 493.37 

            

IFCI Factors Ltd 
FYE’14 7935.77 4441.7 13373.31 -4923.04 -3553.93 

FYE’13 7935.77 8083.54 17648.5 2822.56 1922.81 

FYE’12 7935.77 6186.4 16162.86 3748.93 2511.89 

 

*As per provisional figures, SBI Factors has recorded a net loss of INR 46 cr against a total 

income of INR 99 cr for fye’15. Its Net Worth stood at INR 320 crores. Canbank Factors Ltd has 

recorded a net profit of INR 14.8 cr against a total income of INR 88.60 cr. India Factoring has 

reported a net loss of INR 239 cr against a total income of INR 61.04 cr for the period ending 

Dec 2014 for FY 2014-15. IFCI Factors has recorded a net loss of INR 59.56 crore against a 

total income of INR 105.65 crore for the FY 2014-15.  

Operational Performance 
 

Amidst the challenging macroeconomic environment, your Company witnessed a decline in its 
funds in use (FIU) and few accounts turning into Non Performing Assets, resulting into the 
Company incurring losses during the financial year under Report. During the year under Report, 
your Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 2,094 Crore (a decline of 26.91% Y-O-Y) and a gross 
income of Rs. 105.65 Crore (a decline of 25.67% Y-O-Y). Further, your Company incurred a loss 
before tax of Rs. 88.15 Crore and a loss after tax of Rs. 59.56 Crore.  
 
The major financial parameters for the financial year ended 31.03.2015 vis-à-vis the previous 
financial year are tabulated below: 
 
 
                                                                                           (Rs. in Crore) 

Parameters Year ended 
31.03.2015 

Year ended 
31.03.2014 

Turnover 2,094 2,865 

Funds in Use     

  Factoring Business 689 736 

  Other Business 131 151 

Total Funds in use 820 886 

Total Income 105.65 142.15 

Profit Before Tax -88.15 -49.24 

Profit After Tax -59.56 -35.54 

 

 

 

 



Opportunities  

 IFL is the only company operating in working capital space for the entire IFCI group.  

 RBI has been indicating a favorable intent for factoring Industry through various circulars 

like 50:50 factoring to non factoring product ratio, Export Factoring without recourse to 

name a few. Further, a representation has been made to RBI for relaxation in provisioning 

norms for factoring entities.  

 Budget 2015 has recently approved SARFAESI rights for notified NBFCs. IFL is in process of 

becoming notified NBFC. This will strengthen IFLs ability to lend secured loans, as recovery 

process can be speeded up in case of delinquency. 

 There is funding gap in SME sectors as banks have not been able to meet funding needs to 

this sector. 

 

Threats 

 IFL does not have DRT access. 

 NBFC Factor have to classify an asset as NPA where the invoices remain unpaid for a period 

more than 150 days and this would be progressively reduced to 90 days from FY 2017-18. 

 Provisioning requirement for the impaired assets to the extent of 100% within 16 months 

due to unsecured nature of facilities has devastating impact on the profitability of the 

Factoring entities. 

 

Segment wise / Product –wise Performance 

 

IFLs has extended both factoring and non factoring facilities to its clients. The product wise 

exposure of IFL as on 31.03.2015 is as under: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount              

(Rs. Crore) 

A.  Factoring   

1. Domestic Sales Bill Factoring  588.08 

2. Export Sales Bill Factoring 36.73 

3. Advance Against Future Receivables 21.46 

3. Purchase Bill Factoring 42.88 

 Total (A) 689.15 

B.  Non Factoring  

1. Corporate Loan 130.70 

 Total (B) 130.70 

 Total (A+B) 819.85 

 

The Company has extended facilities across industry segment. Industry wise exposure of the 

Company as on 31.03.2015 is as under: 

 



 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount              

(Rs. Crore) 

1. Small Scale Industries  16.17 

2. Medium & Large Industries   36.79 

3. Construction 23.41 

4. Advance to Capital Market 19.02 

5. Retail Trade 16.73 

6. Commercial Real Estate 73.83 

7. Infrastructure  114.48 

8. Transport Operators 20.45 

9. Consumer Durables  3.20 

10. Others  495.77 

 Total 819.85 

 

 

Outlook 

 

Moving forward, in FY 2014-15, in light of the weak marcroeconimic environment, IFL would 

strive to maintain its asset quality through vigilant monitoring, recovery of its non perfroming 

assets, arrest further slippages of the accounts into NPA and grow its asset base with addition 

of quality assets.  

 

While there is immense potential for growth of factoring business in India, lack of conducive 

legal framework  and acknowledgement of factoring as a method of working capital finance has 

been the major impediment of its growth.  

 

However, with enactment and implementation of the Factoring Regulation Act, 2011, 

categorization of the IFL as an “NBFC Factor" by the Reserve Bank of India under the said Act, 

initiative for setting up a Credit Guarantee Fund of Rs. 500 crore, RBI’s initiative towards for 

setting up of a Trade Credit Exchange for electronic factoring of bills, RBI circulars relaxing 

norms from 75:25 to 50:50 for factoring to non factoring product ratio, SARFAESI rights to 

NBFCs with asset base of Rs. 500 crore or more and RBI permitting Export Factoring without 

recourse indicate move towards a positive environment for business of factoring in India. 

Together with positive move for factoring business and focus on digitalization would mean that 

factoring business in India is poised for growth. 

 

Risks and concerns 

 

 IFL has non-interest bearing assets base in the form of NPA of approx Rs.226, mostly 

unsecured. 

 More than 70% of overall asset base of IFL is unsecured 



 Increased competition from banks consequent to permission to banks to undertake business 

of factoring in India. 

 Increase in Non - Performing Asset as NBFCs have to classify an asset as NPA where the 

invoices remain unpaid for a period more than 150 days and this would be progressively 

reduced to 90 days from FY 2017-18. 

 Increased provisioning requirement for the impaired assets to the extent of 100% within 16 

months. This would be progressively reduced to 12 months from FY 2017-18. 

 

Internal Control Systems 

The Company has an Internal Control System which is commensurate with the size, scale and 

complexity of its operations.  

 

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including 
number of people employed 
 
The Company has continuously adopted structures that help attract best external talent and 

promote internal talent to higher roles and responsibilities. The Company’s people centric focus 

providing an open work environment fostering continuous improvement and development 

helped several employees realize their career aspirations during the year.  

 
During the year under report, your Company had witnessed a high attrition rate and in order to 

augment its headcount, your Company has recruited 18 officers across various verticals of the 

Company. As on March 31, 2015, your Company had 51 (Fifty one) employees on its roll vis-à-

vis 49 (Forty nine) employees as on March 31, 2014. 

 

 

 



Chandiwala Virmani & Associates iaNrChartered Accountants

INDtrPENDENT ALiDITORS' REPOR T (REVISED)

TO THE J\IEMBERS OF IFCI FACTORS LI}IITtrD

Audito:s Report dated -April 30,2015 is being revisc(l to include the r.eporting on dir.ections/sub-
directions issued by the CAG undcr settion 143(5) ofthe Companias Act,2013

Report on the Financi:rl Statcments

we have audited the accompanving financial statenrents of tFCl FACTORS LRIITED (..rhe
compan-v'-).rvhich comprise tlre Balance Sheet as at 3 | \larrh 201 5. the Statenrent t.>f Profit and Loss. the
(--ash Florv Statemetlt for the vear then ended. and a surnmary of significant accounting policies ancl
other explanatorv inlonnation.

Mrn:rgenrent's Responsibility for the Finnncial Statent€nts

The Contpanv's Board of Directors is : espousible tirr the matters in sectiorr I -i4(5 ) of the Conrpan ies Act.
20 li ('ihe Act") rvith respect io lhe preparatiol of these financial statements that give a true and fair vierv
tlf the financial position. lirrancial perfbrtnance and cash floivs of the Compan1.. ir) accordance ,"ith t1e
accottntinq principles gent-r'all.1 accepled in India. including the Accountilg Stanclards specified undcr
Sectio| I33 tlf the r\ct. read trith llule 7 of thc Co:npanies (AccoLrnts) Rules. l0l,l. This responsibility.
also includcs thc nlaintenancc ofadequate accounlillg recorcis in accr':rdarce rvith the prolision of thc,,\c.t
lbr saf'eguarding of the assets of the Cionipanl, and lbr preventing and detectin-e the traLrtls and otlrer
ilregularities: selection and applicatiol of appropriate accountitlg policies: nraking.lLulements ancl
estimates that are leasonable attd prudenl and design. inrplerlenlntion ancl maintenance of adequate
tnternal titlancial control. tllat u'ere operating efkctir.ely for errsuring the accLrracv ancl complete.ess of
the accortnting records- relevanl lo the preparation antl preserrtation of the financial stalcnlents that givc,
a t.ue and fair'ierv ancl are free r'om nrate.iar nrisstaternent. whether due to fi.aud or error.

A ud itor's Responsi bilitr

Our responsibiliry. is lo erptess an opinion on tlrese tinancial statenrents based on our audit.

we have taken into account the provisions of the Act tlre accounting antl aurliting stanclar.ds ald llratters
whiclt ale requiled to be irrclLrded in the auclit repoft uncler the pror.isions of the Act arrd the Rules nrade
therc under.

\\'e ctrltducled otlt'audit in itccorclance *ith the Standarcls on Aucliting specified under section l.1j(10)of
the Act' l-lrose Standanls reqtlire that rve co:nplv u'ith ethical requirernenrs and plan and perlbrm the aLr4itto obtain reasotrahlc assurance ahttut rvltethel rhe finaitcial statements are liee t't.om matcrial
nr issfatentent.

An audit involves pcrfornring ptocedures to obtain audit evidence aboLrt the anrorrnts and clisclosures rn
the financial statcmetrts. I-irc procctltres selecte'tl rJepcntl on ths arrditor,s .iuilgment. includrng the
assessmel)t of the fisks of material lllisslnlcnlent of ther flnancla I siatelnenls. \\,hetirer due to fiaud or error.

Dr. Behl House, IInd Floor, 1S, Oar5ragan;, Oelhi-llOoO2. ph:



In ntakinq lhose risk assessnrents, the auditor considcrs internal finaucial control relevant to tlle
Cotlpan-v's pleparal.ion o1'1htt flnancial slatcrl':cnts that givc truc ancl fhir vierv in grder to design au(lit
Procedures tllat are appropt iate in the circuurstnnces. An audit also includes evaluatius, thc
ppropriateness ol'accottnlhrg policies used and tl'rc leasonablencss of the accounting estilnates made by

Compa.ny's Dilcctors, as rvcllas evaluating tlre overall preset)lation ofthe financial statements.

We belier"e that the auclit evidence'rve have otrlained is sufficient and apprclpr.iate to provitle a basis for
oLrr audit opinion on the llnancial statements.

Opinion

ln our opinion and 1o dre best ol our irtlbmration and according kr the explanations given to us. :hc
afbresaid financial statements, give rhe inforrnation rcquired by the Act in ahe malner so requircd an6
give a tnte and I'air vierv in conlbrmilv rvith the accounting principles -ueneralll. accepte4 in India;

a) irr thc case of thc Balance Shcct, of'thc statc of affairs ol'rlre co;rrpanv as at l\.rar.ch 3 l. 2015;

b) in the case ol'tlle Statement ol'Protit and [-oss. olthe L-oss lor tlre ye'ar endecl on that datet and

c) in the case ofthe C:uh f'lorv staternent. ofthc cash tlorvs ltrr thc ycar.ended o, that dare.

Re;mrt on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required br the Companies (Auditor's Report) Onler.20l-i ("the Order") issuerj hy.the Cen6al
Governmellt of lndia in lcrrns o['sub-section (1 l) ol'section 143 of'the Acl. rve give in the AnnexLrre a
staleulcnt on tl)e ntaltc|.s specified in paragraphs 3 ancl .i ol.the Order

2. As required bl. section 14-j1,1) ofrhe Act, we report thar:

a) We have soughl and obtained all the iufbrmaliorr and explanations which to the best ol our
knorvledge and beliefrvere necessan tbr tlre purposes of oLrr.audit.

b) In otrr opinioll Propor boctks ofaccount as requirecl by larv have becrr iiept bv the cionrpany so far.as
appears iront our exautila.tiol oftlrose books

c) As per the iutblmalion and explanatious given to us. the company has branch ofllce(s) only lbr
lllarketing ptllposes. ilencc. no rcquirement to consider report of hranch aLrclitor and tlealt \!ith it in
preparit)g oUr report

d) The Balancc Sheet" thc statcment of Prol-it arrd l,oss. and Cash Florv State;r)ent dealt with br this
Report arc in agl.eentent rl.ith thc hooks ol'accotutt

e) In our opiltioa, the albresaid finrurcial statcnrents compl-v ilith (he Accounting Sta:rdards speciiied
rnder Section I13 ofthe Acr- read with Rure 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rrres.20r,1.

t) ln otrr opinion, there is no sttch observirtion rvhich may' have aclverse effect on thc t-uncfioninq ol. the
c0mDonv.



-q) On lhc basis of rvrillen represcntatiols receivcd lionr the directols as on l] | Malch. 2015. takcn on

rccold b1, the lJoald ol'Directols- nole of thc directors is disqualitied as on 3l March, 2015. frorn bcing
appointed as a dilcctor iI1 tefnrs of Seclion :6"1(2) of'thc Act.

h) 'l here is no qualification, reselvltion or adverse rernark relating to the mainterlance of acconrrts and

other matters connected thelervith.

i) The co:npan1' has adequale intenral financial conhol s]--stem in place ar:d the opclating ell'ectiveness ol'
such controls.

.i) With tcspccl to 1hc other nratlers 1cl tre included in the Auditor's Report iu accgrdance lvith rule l1 9f
Conrpanies {Audit and Auditors) Rulcs. 2014. in our opinion and to the best trf our inftrrrnation and
according to the explanations -uiven to us:

i.'flre Contpanv does not havc anv pencli:rg litigations *hich would impact its financial positiorr.

ii. Thc Company did not have anv lor:g-tenl contracts includirrg derivatives contracls lor lvhich there
\r'erc ally ntalerial fbrescezrble losses.

iii. There has been no tlelar" in ranst'clling amounts. required to be transt'elred. to the l)vestor Education
and Proteclion Fuld by the Companl.

3. As per dircctions/strb directions issued bv the C&AG of lndia undel section l.l3(5) ofthe Conrpanies
Act 2013 vide lettet'no. MAB-ayCAD/l/l l-2/2013-14ll2l dated April 30, 2015. rve report thar :

Directions

l. Thc colnpanv ltas not bcen selccted firr d isi:lvestmerrt; therefirre. this clause is not applicable.

2. Case's crl'rlilivcriwrite ol'f ol debts/loan/inlerest are givcn hereunder:

(i) A sunl o1' Rs.54 | .20 lacs lras been rvaivcd on account of interest drrlinlr the vear in 7 cases
lo e\pedite the recoverv / Onc Tinte Seltlemenl (Ol'S).

(ii) A stlnl o1' Rs.2.46.1 lacs has been rvritten ofT durin-lr the year in 4 cases. Out of rvhich
Rs.2-250 Lacs has been rvritten off in 2 casc's due to ptnr chances of recoverv in the opinion of
Inanagene:tt and Rs.Zl4 lacs in f cases has been r,,,l itten olTon account of01.S.

3. Tlte company is a registercd NBFC. tltcrelble clause rega:ding maintcnance 6f irrventories rs ngl
applicable. No assets have becn received as gili from Govt. or other authorilies bv {he co1pan1..

4. Detail ofagc r"'ise anal-vsis ofpe'ding legal/arbitration cases are giverr hereu'tler:

Time bucket No. of cases filed Amount (Rs. in Lacs)

t.Jp to one veal 20 O.J J J.4 f

Pcrrding firr up to 
-[ 

rvo r r,.ar.s 7l 2 5.52 7.6_l



5,918.87
Pending for' 2 to 3 Yeat.s

4,I I 8.68
Pending for 3 to 5 Years

Abovc no. of cases and unlount inuoln.,l ore due to filing of multiple cases filed hefore various

forums for effective recoverli.

CasesaLepcndinginvaritrttsiilrLlnrofadjudicationdueto|egalprocess.Inourtlpitlion
mouitoling rnechanisnt tbr expenditure on all legal cases are reasonable

Sub-I)irections

l. The company does not own anY land, therefore this clatlse is not applicable'

2. (i) conlinnation of Bank balances, tracle receivahles, trade pa1'ables and Loatrs and Advances

were nrade available to tts.

(ii) No rvitle variation has been reported by tlre parties rvhile confirrning the balances'

3. Sirrce rhe conrpan). is NB!'C -NDSI. therefbre. cLtsto:rl, Excise. Sales tax (vAI) arc not

applicable. There is no rnreconciled aurount in the natule of advance,/l)eposits madc b-v the

corllpany to hrcome 'fax/Service Tax.

4. Necessary lldependent verification has breen made of inlbrlltation/inputs turnished to Actuary-.

viz nunrber. of employees, average salar-r. retirenlent age and assumptions tnade b!' the AchlaU

r.cgarding cliscount ra{e, filture cost increase. nrortality mte, elc lbr arriving at the provision fbr

liability of retiremeDt henefits. viz gratLri:y, leave encashnrent. post-retilelnent ntedical benetits

etc

5. There is no invcstnlent in CGS/SGS/Bonds/Debentures except debenturc applicaaion money as

per Note no.28, hence the verification of titles of olvnership in lespect of

CGS/SGS/BondVDebetttures etc. are not applicahle

FOR CHANDIWALA VIR]VIANI & ASSOCIATES

(BHARAT BI{USHAN)
PARTNER
Membership No. 087J65

Pl*ce: Nerv Delhi
Dnted: May 11,2015

Chartercd Acco ntrnts

,r@i
,v\#K9



ANNf,XURE REFERRID TO IN PARAGRAPH I LINDER TH,f, Hf,ADING *Rf,PORT ONOTHER LNGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMANTS'OF OUR RNPORT OF NVNN DATN

;ri.t* 
ACCOUNTS oF rFCr FACTORS LrMrrED FOR THE YEAR f,NDED ilrARcr{ 31,

i) (a) The conpany has lnailttaiued proper i'ecords showing ful particurars iucluding quantitative derailsand situation ol'fixed assets.

1b) Aecordirig trr the information and explanations given to us, afl fixed assets have not been pSysicalil,verified by the managemenf during the year buithere is a regurar programme ofverificarion rvhich,ttt our opinion' is reasonable having regard to the size of the company an6 tlre nature of its assets.As informed, no rnaterial discrepancies lvere noficed on suctr veriticarion.

ii) The Company does not hav
the order, are not applicable. 

e an!'lnverltory- Therefore' the provisions of clause 4 (ii) (a), (b) & (c) ot'

iii) As informed to u., the company has not granted any loan. secured or unsecured, to comparies, lirmsor other parties covered in the register maintainea una"r's."tio,., lg9 ofthe companies a"f a".orou,gty.provisions ofc'laase 4(iii) (r, to (b) ofthe Order are not oppti"ot ,..
iv) In our opinion and according fo the information aud expranations given to us. therc are adequareilttelnal conkol procedures colnmensufate with the size ofthe company and narure of its business wrhregard to purchase of fixed assets a'd for the sale of sen,ices. During the coi;rse of our. audit, rve haveneither come across nor ha'e rve been infornted or ouy nlu;,ra .""uk'esses in the irrtenral contr.l syste's.
v) The conrpany has not accepled an;,' deposits fron: the public within the nreaning of Sectio tr 73 ta j6 orany ofter relevant pr.visions of the companies a.t'on,i trr" rures framed there under., lvhere'erapplicable. Therefore the provisions ofclause 41r) ofthe Order are not applicable.

;?f:J.:,,::ffi:JJ", 
engagetl in any manuthcruring operalion. rhe provisions ol,ctause 4(vi) of the

'vii) a) Acco'dilrg to the ilr fbnrrat iort 
.and 

explarrations givern to us and the records pr.ducc-d betbre us fbrveriJ'icatior, re company 
]s 

regular in ,rei.rsiting 
-undisp'ted 

s1atu1.ry, tlues includingprovident fund' ernployees' statc- i'surzurce,'in"nriri-tu*, sares-lrui, w.eartrr tax, service tax.

ir':o"r1H;T,T:"[T:,,:.::,."*. 
uutu. ooa"J i*,'""* unc any otirer srutuio.i oue, *itr,

tr) Acctl.dilrg to the inlbrmation arrd explarrations given to us, there are 
'o 

dues of income tax. salestax' wealth tax, seruice tax or duty of enstoms i arry oi"*"ir. or varue ac*Jed tax or cess whichhave not been depr:sited on account of any dispute except the Lbllorvina:



Forurn where
disputc is pending

Lrcome Tax Act, I 961 Cl'l'tAppeal1

lncorne Tax Act. 196 |

Inconte Toi Act l96l I t,49,380 An 2011-12

c) According to the intbmation artcl explanations given to us ,arnount requu€cl to be ransf-erred tolnvestor education and proteclion Iind in accorelauce with the relevant provisiorrs ol the Companres Act,
1956 ( I ol | 956) and rures made there under has been transfen ed to srich firnd within time

Viii) The Corrrpany does have accunrulatecl losses at the end ol.the financial year rvhich are less than fi l.t;..per cent of its net worth' The company has ntlt irtci:rred cash krsses during the linancial year. covererl bvour audit or in the itnmediatelv preceding linancial year.

ix) In oLrr opinion and accortling to the infonnation and explanations given ter us. the conlpan-y has notdefhulted in repayment ofdues ro a furanciar insritution, bank or.tlebenture hoiders.

x) In out'opinion and according 10 the intbrnlation auti explanalions given to us. lhe Company las notgiven any guarantee rbr roa's taken by othefs liom banks and t'inarcial instifutions.

xi) To the best oLu knorvledge and belief'alt! accor'ding ro the inlbmration and explanati.ns given to us,the term krans availed b1' the Company rvere appliecl for the puryoses l.or w.hich the krarrs rvere raken.

xii) To the best ot'our kn.wledge and belief and accor <iing to hlfonnafion and explanati.ns gi\.€n to us,Nineteen fraud'/ suspected fraud cases involvirrg amounting Rs. l4l.g4 Crore (excludirrg Interest) on theCotnpany has been noticed out of wlrich l'our cases involuing anouuting Rs. 45.6g crore (exchlcling
lnterest) has been reported to RBI during the course ofour audii.

FOR CHANDIWAI,A VIRMANI & ASSOCIATES
Charaercd Accountants

(BHARAT BIIUSHAN)
PARTNER
Membership No. 087365
Place: New Delhi
Dated: April 30, 2015



IFCI FACTORS TIMITED

SAIANCE SHEETAS AT MARCH 31,2015

PARTICUIARS

As at
March 31, 2015

Rs.

As at
March 31, 2014

Rs.

Note
No.

EqUITYAND TIAEILITIES

shareholders' Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings
Long-Term Provisions

Current Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings
Trade Payables

Other Current Liabilities
Short-Term Provisions

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets

Intangible Assets

Non-Current Investment
Deferred Tax Assets (net)

Long-Term Loans and Advances
Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

Current Investments

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Current Assets

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.

(Bharat Bhushan)
Partner
Membership No.087365

Date: April 30, 2015
Place: New Delhi

7,543,957,OOO 793,577,O00

2,47 4,OOO,OOO

a7,290,297
4,355,000,000

57,739,797

-_........Ls5J229:Or^297 4,4r3,t39,797.

6
7

9

2,732,196,655
21,488,996

2,465 ,544,O94

2,483,458,452

25,709,720
1,695,939,584

2s,022,8o4 -gg/!!,os:
_,.**_5_,,qJ4]1s3,5--49,,,-,-,.!,?1,p,82-2Jp!s..

TOTAT 4,942,254,449 9,8A6,779,815

7,634,969 4,973,697

-_- L,B1 ,397 . ... 2,422,577

10

11

72

r4

77

2,772,366

25,228,963

547,847,630

881,463,258
67,399,279

7,736,274

25,228,963
254,649,098

486,682,980

2s,833,572

-__1,s18]7_-054lq. . _ .Z.gs,,t_10,c_82.-

19,200,000

6,839,826,492
159,889,31s

434,637,206

19,200,000

8,1s3,359,478

778,026,867

796,662,584

*, 7,463,ss3r0_13 jpg7.-?!9p29*

,q,982,2s8,449 9,885,779,A16

Summary ofSignificant Accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. (1t043 )

As per our audit report of even date attached
For Chandiwala Virmani & Associates For and on behalfof Boa.d of Directors

-'A IilrilrtY( l'v-."'-*'-)l ^v5(Bikash Kanti Roy) { (sudhir GarsT----I-
Director

DrN - 05777363\
.)( { ..<N-

-[AnkurAgbrwal]
Company Secretary

@M
Managing Director

DtN - 02171876

{talit Eansal}
cFo



IFCI FACTORS TIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND IOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

PARTICUI.ARS Note
No.

Year Ended
March 31,2015

Rs,

Year Ended

March 31,2014
Rs,

INCOME

Revenue from Operations
Other lncome

Total (A)
EXPENSES

Employee Benefits Expense

Operating, Administrative and Other Expenses
Finance Costs

Depreclation and Amortization Expense

Total(81
Profit Before Provisions & write Offs (A-B)
Provisions & Write Offs
Profit / (Loss) EeforeTax
Tax Expenses:

Current Tax

Deferred Tax (Net)
Profit / (Loss) After Tax
Earnings PerShare (Face Value - Rs. 10 per share)
Basic

Diluted

Summary of Significant Accounting policres

Partner

Membership No. 087365

Date: April30,2015
Place: New Delhi

r,052,009 ,967 1,337,330,533

____ tltzJ91.. _ . "_ --*94,pt*43I,055,547,760 t,421,525,976

18

19

20
27

22
10

63,307,939
77,707,997

975,7 45,406

_**.1qsll1!* ..._. _.-_,,- 3,62!89-
8]4,67"0172 * lfg3,85g.g?e
24t,a77,5a8

r,723,358,984

_, (881,/r81,3e61 .0gagg_lggu

7,322,968 53,537,192

-__- la9!.1-9?.s3?l_ l!.s9,4!8243)
__ "-!!99.qugr4,_-," (3ss,3e2,eeo)

46,117,519
63,487,779

701,381,821

23
36&670,3s0
860,974,391

{7.s1)
(3.85)

(4,48)

(4.48)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (1+, 45)

As per our audit report of even date attacned
For Chandiwala Virmani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000082N

(L-
(Bharat Bhushan)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

W
(Blkash Kanti Roy)

Managing Director
DrN - 02171876

cFo

k*lB
Director

ott't - OOzZZ:O: fiQ*J
[r Agerwal)



IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015
Year Ended

March 31, 2015

Year Ended

March 31, 2014

Rs.

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation/Amortisation
(Profit)/Loss on Sale/ oiscard of Fixed Assets

Share / Bond lssue Expenses charged to Securities Premium Accolnt
Expenses Related to lssuance ofShare Capital

Bad Debts Written Off
Reversal of Provision for Doubtful Debts
Provision for Standard Assets

Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Debts and Loans

Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Leave Encashment

Provision for Diminution in value of Non-Curent lnvestments
Income From MutualFund

Operating Profi t Before Working Capital Changes
Movement in WorkinS Capital

Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables & other Current Liabilities
(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables

(Bharat Bhushan)
Partner
Membership No. 087365

Date: April30, 2015
Place: New Delhi

l!,270,994) (3,046,931)

235,554,563

l'483,261,797)
155,486,936
(18,6s9,99s)

\1,322,958) {59,01s,468)
51,431,s06 145,803,379

(881,481,396)

3,683,713

(8.911,3s0)

246,4Og,;g1
(331,4s0,45s)

78,272,605
1,190,186,8s3

277,577
(41,96s)

l4s2,304,041)

2,694,290

116,707)

18,791,260)
12,387,6a9

279,887,126
(s6,100,000)

2,474,470
694,172,395

1,016,596

(411,016)

726,2A3

(lncrease)/Decrease in Loa ns & Advances, Other Current & Nonturrent Ass( !59,634,767 (139,867,6541
Net Cash Used in Operations
DirectTax Paid

Net Cash Flow From Oper.ting Activities
B. CASH FTOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sale of Fixed Assets

Investment in Current and Non Current Investments
Income From MutualFund

Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

5ubordinate Debts Raised

lssue of Preference Shares
Dividend Paid

Net Cash Flow From Financint Activlties
NET INCREASE/(DICREASE) IN CASH AND CAsH EQUIVALENTS

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents
Closing cash and Cash Equivalents

Note:
1 Component5 ofCash and Cash Equivalentsi

58,754,474 204,818,847

10114O825

March 3t 2015 Ma.ch 31, 2014

For and on behalf ot Board of Directors
Chanered Accountants

11,276,902't

372,629,294

(2,904,90s,363)

1922,557,62r)
3,799,514,t97

(7,172,2031

23,964

144,555,246)
t,270,994 3,046,931

54,@2 (42,656,554)

(750,000,000)

750,380,000

(3,150)

376,850
5\462,444

7L4,O26,867 M,aa0,042
159,889,315 rLa,O26,a67

Cash on Hand 27,65t j,447
Ealances with Banks 169,861,864 IL8,O71,42O

2 Previous year fiEures have been re-grouped/re-arranged/re-classifieu 
"t "r"*-E#"taln;;;#ffiffLthe currentyear tig!ires.

As per our audit report ofeven date attached
FoJ Chandiwala Virmani & Associates

A.
(l[*

lailas xantinoy;
Managing Director

DtN - 02171876

@b-^")
(Lalit Bansal)

cFo Company Secretary



IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, on historical cost convention, in
accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and after
taking into account the applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBl) to Non Eanking
Financial Companies from time to time and in accordance with the mandatory Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

b) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the
balance sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are
based on the management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of
financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions and any revision to
accounting estimates is recognised in the period in which they actually materialise.

Revenue Recognition
Income from factoring and other financing activities is accounted on accrual basis except in the case of
non-performing assets where income is accounted on realisation basis as per prudential guidelines laid
down bV the RBl.

Classification of Assets and Provisioning
i) All credit exposures are classified into performing and non-performing assets (NpAs) as per

guidelines laid down by the RBl. Further, NPAs are classified into sub-standard, doubtful ano ross
assets based on the criteria stipulated by RBl.

ii) Provision for NPAs and restructured/rescheduled assets is made as per guidelines laid down bV the
RBI.

iii) Provision for standard assets is made @ 0.50%.
Additional provision is made against specific assets over and above what is stated above, if in the
opinion of the management, increased provision is necessary.

Fixed Assets, Depreciation & Amortization
(i)Tangible

Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciat;on and impairment. Depreciation has
been provided on straight line method (SLM) over the use full life of assets as prescribed under
Schedule ll to the Companies Act 201.3. During the year method of charging depreciation has oeen
changed from wDV method to sLM method and retrospective effect of the same has been
transferred to opening reserves.

(ii) Intangible
In accordance with Accounting Standard-26, Intangible Assets are valued at cost less accumulated
amortization and any impairment losses. Expenditure on major software products is written off as
prescribed under Schedule ll to the Companies Act 2013.

lmpairment of assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that any asset may be
impaired. lf any such indication exists, the carrying value of such assets is reduced to its recoverable
amount and the impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. lf at the balance

c)

d)

e)



IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

sheet date there is any indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, then such
loss is reversed and the asset is restated to that effect.

i)

Factored Debts
Debts factored are shown as'Trade Receivables'. The unpaid balance of debts factored and due to the
clients on collection is included under'Other Current Liabilities' as 'Contractual Liability against
Collection of Trade Receivables'.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of
transaction. Gains/losses arising out of fluctuation in exchange rates on settlement are recognised in the
statement of Profit & Loss. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end and gains/losses on translation are provided
for in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Premium/discount on hedging transactions is spread over the
period to which it relates.

Investments
Investments are classified into long-term investments and current investments.
a) Long-terminvestments:

Long-term investments are stated at cost. A provision is made for diminution other than temporary
on an individual basis.

b) Current investments:
Current Investments are stated at the lower of cost or market value.

Taxation
a) current Tax is determined and provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income

for the year.
b) Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being tne

difference between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in one period ano are
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are
measured using tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are recognised if there is reasonable certainty tnat
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such Deferred Tax assets can be
realised. Deferred taxes are reviewed for the carrying values at each balance sheet date.

Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution plan

Employee benefits in the form of contribution towards Provident Fund and Family penslon schemes
are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributiqns are charged to the statement of
Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective funds are due.b) Defined Eenefit Plan
Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefit obligations and are
provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the
date of the Balance Sheet.

cl Other Long Term Benefits
Long term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuatlon, using tne
projected unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheer.

Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to Statement of profit and Loss.

c)

h)

rl

k)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2015

l) Leases

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases, Lease rentats are charged to the statement of profit &
Loss on straight line basis over the lease term.

m) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
a) Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only using a substantial degree of

estimation, if:
(i) the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event.
(ii) a probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and
(iii) the amount of obligation can be reliablV estimateo.

Reimbursements expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognized only
when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.
b) Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

(i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation.

(ii) a possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.
Provisions, contingent Liabilities are reviewed by the management at each Balance sheet date.
c) Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For
the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year Jttributaote to
equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for
the effects ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

Share lssue Expenditure
Expenses incurred in reration to issue of shares, Debentures & Bonds (net of taxes) are charged to
Securities Premium Account.

Employee Stock Option plan

Measurement and disclosure of the emproyee share-based payment prans is done in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Accounting for Emproyee share-based payments, issued by the Institute of
chartered Accountants of rndia (rcAr). The company measures compensation cost rerating to emproyee
stock options using the intrinsic value method. compensation expense, if any, is amortised over the
vesting period of the option on a straight line basis.

n)

o)

p)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2015

As at As at
March 31,2015 March 31,2014

Rs.Rs.
2. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
200,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

{Previous Year 150,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)
100,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each
(Previous Year Nil Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each)

lssued, Subscribed and Paid up:
79,357,700 Equity Shares (Previous year 79,357,700) of Rs.10 each
fully paid up
75,038,000, 9% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative preference

Shares (Previous Year Nil) of Rs.10 each fully paid up

2,000,000,000 1,500,000,000

1,000,000,000

793,577 ,000

750,380,000

793,577,000

109,731,,828 118,523,088

_-.,,--__.,. 8,9.1-1,350 8,797,260
!o0,820,418 709,73L,828

_ __ - r,l"41gs74q0 ._7s3F77,ogg,..
a. out of above, 79,754,7O0 Equity shares (Previous Year 79,154,700 Equity shares) are held by tFct Limited, Hotding
company including 8 Equity shares (previous year 8 Equity shares) herd by nominees of rFcr Limited.
b. Out of a bove, 75,000,000 Preference Shares (Previous Year Nil ) are held by tFCl Limited, Holding Company.

c Duringtheyear, Company has issued 75,038,000, 9% compulsorily cumulative convertible preference share ofRs. 10
each on right basis at Par, out of which 75,ooo,ooo prefeRence shares has ben subsffibed by lFcl Limited bv wav of
conversion of Subordinate Debt.

d. The company has only one class of Equity shares having par value of Rs. L0 per share. Each hotder ot Equitv shares is
entitled to one vote per share.

3. RESERVES AND SURPTUS

Securities Premium Account
Opening Ba lance

Less: Expenses on increase in capital/ Bond {net oftaxes)
Closing Balance

Statutory Reserve Fund
(under section 45 lC of Reserve Bank of India Act)
Open ing Balance

Add: Transferfrom Surplus Balance in Statement of profit and Loss
Closing Balance

General Reserve
Opening Ba lance

Less: Transfer to Statement of profit and Loss

L75,573,439 175,573,439

175,573,439

3,165,000

!75,573,439

3,165,000

Closing Balance

Surplus Balance in Statement of profit and Loss
Open ing Balance

Add: Profit / {Loss) for the year
Less: Appropriations

Transfer to Statutory Reserve Fund
Transitional Depreciation

Closing Balance

TOTAT

3,155,000

1qq 6qo onl
(s9s,611,832)

(440,900,314)

3,165,000

s11,092,893

{3ss,392,990)

1s5,699,903

161 F!\,3"e-7) . . -,!!l!1.7 9 l_l o
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NOTES TO THE TINANCIAI STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2015

As at
Mafch 31,2015

Rs.

As at
March 31,2014

Rs.
4. LONG-TERM EORROWINGS

oebentu.es / Bonds
Secured #
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Bonds
Unsecured
Redeemable, Non-convertible Bonds

;Subordinate 
Debts - tFCl Ltd - Retated party (Tier- Capital) - 750,OOO,OO0

#securedbyparipa5sUchargeoncorporate|oanreceivab|es&currentas5et5othertn"n,u..o,"#
* Secured by pari passu charge on factored receivables by way of hypothecation.

Perpetual, Non-Convertible Debenture - tFCl Ltd - Related party {Tierl Capital)
Term loans
Secured t
- From Eanks
- From Others -lFCl Ltd - Related pa.ty
Unsecured

5. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Leave Encashment
G ratuity
Contingent Provisions against Standard Assets
Sundry Liabilities Account (tnterest Capitalisation)
TOTAI.

5. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured*
Working Capital Demand Loan- From BanKs
Short Term Loans
- From Others
Cash Credit - From Banks
Unsecured
Bank Overdraft
TOTAL

36,459,57! 13,977,999
4L290,297 57,739,797

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000
250,000,000

224,000,000

3,777,640
2,870,746

38,843,000

1,000,000,000

635,164,269

1,5s3,383,343

144000,000
1,000,000,000

160,938,111

3,988,434

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000
250,000,000

355,000,000
1,000,000,000

3,769,496

37,375,901

1,850,000,000

100,000,000

306,189,669

1,315,069,598

144,000,000

7,077,544

234,327
36,772

495.032.386 ))7 )^e'tea
*creditfaci|itie5aresecuredbyparipassuchargeonfactoredreceivablesbywayofhyoo.,,'".".#

7. TRADE PAYABIE

Sundry Creditors
TOTAL

8. OTHER CURRE[{T LIABII.ITIES

Contractual Liability against Collection of Trade Receivables
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (secured)
- From Banks
- From Others - lFCt Ltd - Related party

lnterest Accrued on Borrowings:
- Not due
lncome Received in Advance
Unpaid Dlvidends
Other Liabilities
TOTAL

9. SHORT TERM PROVISIONs
Leave Encashment
Gratuity
Contjngent Provisions aga jnst Standard Assets
TOTAL

24,778,000 30,514,000
zs,ozz,aoq 3oissiF{

21,488.996 )\ 7oq 1)^
27,48A,996 25,709,720

101,570 104,720
3,232,636 1,577,456

2,a6s,644,094 t,6s5,g3g,sa4

r84,272
60,592



9*rAtbtr/&r.t d.n

s6a1t3

2lsJlo 15r,€o 2t ai tta
82,0t2

t6,623

165;ae

131l1t ugt: 113,7't5

552ttt2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI. STATEMENTS TOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2015

As at
Ma.ch 31, 2015

Rs.

As at
March 31, 2014

Rs,

11, NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT

Non-Trade, quoted
- Net 4 lndia Limited

3,232,874 Equity Shares (Previous year - N;l) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
- KEW Industries Limited

2,931,558 Equity Shares (Previous year - Nil) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Less : Provision for Diminution in value
TOTAL

Note:
Book Value

Market Value

12. I-ONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Term Loans (Considered Good)
- Secured *

- Unsecured
Capital Advances (Unsecured)
TOTAL
*Term Loans are secured against mortgage of property & lien on shares.

13. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Security Deposits
Advance Income Tax (including earlier years) (Net of provisions)
TOTAL

14, CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(Non-Trade, at cost or market price, whichever is less)
Debenture Application Money- in Arch pharmalabs Limited
TOTAL

15.TRADE RECEIVABI.ES

Factored Debts:
Outstanding for over six months
Other Debts
Total
Less : Provision for Bad and Doubtful DeDrs
TOTAL

Out of above
Considered Good
- Secured *
- Unsecured
Considered Doubtful

25,455,246 25,355,246

-.-,*-___ " . ugag-_3,.--._,-.,. .,.*_!2_5]aqg--
25,22A,953 25,228,963

20,7 43,679

4,617,567

20,743,6'19

4,67r,567

25,355,246
15,832,923

25,355,246

26,307,784

472,537,847
407,777,939

339,619,395
!46,824,879

.l 147 A79 1.^ 1..456, /OO

881,4631258 485,582,980

8,000 8,000

_ 57,397,219 25,825,572

__ 51,399,219 2s,833,57L

_ .. _ __plqq.o!o 1s,200,000

_ 19,209,000 19,200,000

2,307,593,294 2,129,626,L06

. - __-_9,117]24p! 1 5,s43,0se,15s
8,444,935 ,27s 8,672,685,271
1.505 10R 7il slq e?q 7q?

6,439,426,492 8,153,359,478

978,7Aa,452
5,2r4,453,529

808,737,A02
s,734,32r 363

- Secured *
_ unsecured 

762,699,944 186,686,703

* *ag$!93!I9_,_. " .,1.91U_3_9.191
_- 8,444,935!?75 8,672,685,277*Trade Receivables are secured against mortgage of property and lien on sharJ:-



IFCI fACTORS TIMITED

NOTTS TO lHE TINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARO{ 31, 2015

15. CASH AND CASH EqUNATENTS
Balances with Banks
(lncludes Rs. 10L570 (Previous Year Rs. 104,7201 earmarked balances for
Unpaid Divid€nd)
Cash on Hand
TOTAL

17. OIHER CURRENT ASSEIS
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Cur€nt Matudtlg of Long Tarm Loans
Considered Good
- Secured *

- Unsecured
considered Doubtful
- Secured '
- Unsecured
Total
Less : Provision for 8ad and Doubtful Loans

lnterestAccrued But not Due
Adyances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind orforValue to be Received
TOTAL

'Term Loans are secured aFinst mortgage of property & lien on sha.es,

- 223,793,870

As at
March 31,2015

Rs.

169,861,654

t', a<1

A! at
Ma.Gh 31, 2014

Rs.

11&019,420

7,447
159f893r5 118,026,867

416,840,2-47

9,8/'9,979

777,934,2_02

23,945,A29

426,690,220 1,,079,671,907

1,s00,000 228,545,602
425,190,220

2,1L2,O00
79L,727,299

2,712,O00



IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015
Year Ended

March 31,2015
Rs.

Year Ended

March 31, 2014

Rs.

18. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Discount and Service Charges

lnterest Income on Term Loan

Application and Administration Charges

TOTAI

19. OTHER INCOME
Factoring Bad Debts Recovered
Income from N4utual Funds

Interest Income on Debentures
Exchange Fluctuation (Net)

Unclaimed Balances Written Back
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets

Miscellaneous Income
TOTAL

20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

5alaries and Other Benefits
Contribution to Provident fund
Staff Welfare Expenses

TOTAL

21. OPERATING, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES

Rent, Rates and Taxes

Printing and Stationery
Postage, Telephone and Fax

Travelling & Conveyance
Conferences & Seminar
Legal and Professional
Business Promotion
Repairs and Maintenance

-Buildings

-Others
lmport Factor Commission
Provision for Diminution in value of Non-Current Investments
Share lssue Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

TOTAT

22. FINANCE COSTS

lnterest Expense

Other Borrowing Costs

Bank Charges

TOTAT

23. PROVTSTONS & WRTTE OFFS

Bad Debts Written Off
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts Written Back
Provisions:
-Standard Assets
-Bad and Doubtful Debts and Loans

7,052,009,967 1,337,330,633

847 ,498 ,91,!
767,048,806

37 ,462,250

1,105,288,807

208,876,398
23,765,428

7,270,9-94

3,028,465

238,334

79,000,000

3,046,931

2,!r2,000
10,096

76,707

9,609
4,s37,793 a4,t95,343

r,338,621 7,275,765
46,1L7,5r9

47,878,554
2,900,344

58,748,807
3,343,967

53,307,939

33,402,673

848,606
2,!99,708
3,708,I52

9,428,825
890,443

420,585

2,85I,323
6,772,447

z,$q,att

35,321,6s0

902,6s8
2,502,385
) \q6 171

26,323

6,745,307

qAq r)n
, qrq qq?

4,486,677

126,283
72,387,6a9
2,539,649

63,447,tl9 77,107,997

695,577,477

4,229,501
7,574,843

907,352,897

6,595,628
'J.,796,887

__ r91d81.!?! _ -*-gJ.M!96

246,409,991,

{331,4s0,465)

18,21,2,605

219,887,726
(56,r.00,000)

2,4I4,870

, , *.* 1,,Uq!8!.89L .. -,__, 6s4,772,3es

,*-_-1,_1_4.1,s9f,91 .,899!g74pe1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2015

24. Contingent [iabilities & Commitments
24.L ContingentLiabilities
There is a contingent liability in respect of income tax demands against the Company relating to
assessment years 2002-03 & 2011-12 aggregating to Rs. NIL {Previous Year Rs.2,740,352) which is being
contested by the Company at CIT (A) / |TAT forum and final decision is pending.
24.2 Commitments
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

(net of adva nces) Rs 139,045 (Previous year Rs. 238,764).
b) Undrawn commitments (in line with RBI circular dated December 26,2O1,L1 Rs. 6,051,959 (previous

Year Rs. 60,90,023).
25. Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

The Deferred Tax Assets (Net) as on 31.03.2015 comprise of the following:
Amount in Rs

Particular As at
31.03.2015

As at
3t.03.2074

Leave Encashment
brarurty
Provisions for Bad & Doubtful Debts and Loans
Depreciation

I,142,693
975,764

s46,086,325
(363,1s2)

7,156,957
901,811

254,201-,827
(t,61.1.,497\

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 547,847,630 254,649,098
Amount credited to Statement of profit and Loss 293,192,532 190,448,243

The Company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under,,The Micro Smalt
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" and hence disclosure related to amounts unpaid as at
the year end together with interest paid/payable under this Act has not been given.

Letters seeking confirmation of outstanding balances of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances as at
January 31, 2015 have been sent to all the borrowers except cases under litigation. confirmation In some
cases is awaited. In some of the cases where agencies have informed different bajances, reconciliation is
underwav.

28. Arch Pharmalabs Ltd was sanctioned a Domestic Sales Bill Factoring Facility of Rs. 10.00 crores and
Domestic Purchase Bill Factoring Facility of Rs. 6.00 crores within the overall prepayment limit of Rs. 15.00
crores by the Committee of Directors in May, 2011. The said facillties have been restructured under the
corporate Debt Restructuring ("CDR"), the cut-off date being April 01, 2013. The total amount outstanding
in the books of the Company as on April 01, 2013 was Rs. 15.21 crores. As per the terms of the cDR, an
amount of Rs. 13.29 crores has been converted to Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) which is to be
secured by first pari passu charge on the current assets and second pari passu charge on the fixed assets of
the Company.

An amount of Rs. 1.92 crores has been treated as Debenture Application Money towards Optionallv
convertible Debentures (ocDs). The ocDs will be allotted post creation of security. securitv creation and
issuance of debentures is pending due to a court order which restricts the company from further
encumbering its assets and change in the shareholding structure. The security creation will be comolied
with once the orders are vacated. During the year, as per prudence, income has not been recoenized on
Debenture Application MoneV.

26.

27.

(
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

29. Auditors Remuneration:

30. a) Detail of Bonds (Face Value Rs 1,000,000 each, redeemable at par)

bl I2.5Oo/o,500 Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs 500,000 each issued at par are perpetual in nature and
the Company has 'Call Option' exercisable after June 6,2022 (a minimum period of 10 years from the
date of issue), subject to RBI regulations.

c) Terms of repayment of Long Term Loans:

31.

Amount in Rs

Particular Year Ended

31.03.2015
Year Ended

31.03.2014
Audit Fee

TaX Audit Fee

Other Services

Out of Pocket Expenses

Service Tax

520,000
50,000

2s0,000
20,000

101,352

475,000
25,000

r.67,000
10,000

Total 94L,352 767,239

Amount in
No. of
Bonds

Rate of
lnterest

Date of
Redemption

Put/Call
option

As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

1000 t0.24% May t7 , 2023 No 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
47r t0.20% April 23 , 2023 Yes (April 23,2O2Ol 411,000,000 411,000,000
t70 L0.2s% March 28, 2023 Yes (March 28,2O2O]. 170,000,000 170,000,000
214 LO.L5% April 23, 2018 Yes (April 23,201.6\ 214,000,000 214,000,000
t87 LO.1,5% March 28, 2018 Yes (March 28,2016]' 187,000,000 187,000,000
18 L0.25% March 28, 2018 No 18,000,000 18,000,000

Amount in Rs

From Remaining
Tenor

Repayment
Term

Rate of Interest As at
31.03.2015

As at
3t.03.2014

Banks

Ba nks
Ba nks

Others
Others
Others

Up to l Year
l Year - 2 Year
2Year-4Year
Up to 1 Year

l Year - 2 Years
3Years-5Years

Monthly Repayment
Monthly Repayment
Monthly Repayment
Bullet Repayment
Bullet Repayment
Bullet RepaVment

tt.880/0
17.880/0

1,7.880/0

1,1.25%

11,.25%

]-L.00%-t250%

144,000,000
144,000,000
80,000,000

1,000,000,000

144,000,000
144,000,000
212,000,000

1,000,000,000
750,000,000

Foreiqn Excha that are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are as follows:
Particulars As at

31.03.2015
As at

31.03.2014
Cash & Ba nk Balances
Euro
USD

5u ndrv Creditor
Eu ro
USD

GBP

278.40
500.00

2,474.L2
27 ,085.64

50.43

500.00

856.52
20,442.r2

198.16
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

32. segmental Information
Based on the guiding principles given in the Accounting Standard 17 on "Segment Reporting", issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company's primary business segment is financing. The

Company operates in one geographical segment and no further disclosures as per AS-17 are required to be

made.

33. Related Party Disclosure:
A) Names of the Related Parties:

i) Holding Company
lFCl Limited
Subsidiaries, Associate and Joint Venture of the

Related Party Relationship
lFCl Infrastructure Develooment Limited
lFCl Financial Service Limited
lFCl Venture Capital Funds Limited
MPCON Limited
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited
lFCl Commodity Limited
lFlN Credit Limited
llDL Rea ltors Private Limited
lFlN Securities Finance limited
Tourism Finance Corooration of lndia Limited
Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited
Himachal Consultancy Organisation Limited
North India Technical Consultancy Organisation Limited
HARDICON Limited
Rajasthan Consultancy Organisation Limited
lFCl Sycamore Capital Advisors Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries

Step down Fellow Subsidia ries

Step down Fellow Subsidiaries
Step down Fellow Subsidiaries
Step down Fellow Subsidiaries

Associate
Associate
Associate
Associate
Associate
Joint Venture
Joint Venture

iii) Key Management Personnel
Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy (Managing Director)
Mr. Lalit Bansal (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Rajiv L. Jha (Company Secretary) (up to September 19, 2014)
Mr. Ankur Agarwal (Company Secretary) (from March 02, 2015 onwards)

B) Transactions with Related Parties and Balances thereof:
Amount in Rs

Rent
To Holding Company
Loan

From Holding Company
Opening Balance

Add: Fresh Taken

Less: Repayments / Conversion
Closing Balance

From lFCl Infrastructure Development Limited

33,402,613

2,000,000,000

750,000,000
1,250,000,000

3s,321.,6s0

3,000,000,000

1,000,000,000
2,000,000,000
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Opening Balance
Add: Fresh Taken
Less: Repayments

Closing Balance

To lFCl Venture Capital Funds Limited
Opening Balance

Add: Fresh Given
Less: Repayments

Closing Balance

To Narayan Shriram Investments private Limited
Opening Balance

Add: Fresh Given
Less: Repayments

Closing Balance

Interest
To Holding Company

Opening Balance
Add: Interest for the year
Less: Repayments

Closing Ba lance

From lFCl Venture Capital Funds Limited
To lFCl Venture CapitalFunds Limited

From Narayan Shriram tnvestments private Limited
To lFCl Infrastructure Development Limited

Factored Receivables
From llDL Realtors p Limited

Opening Balance
Less: Repayments

Closing Balance

Income from Discount & Service Charges
From llDL Realtors p Limited

Opening balance
Add : Income accrued during the year
Less : Income Received

Closing balance

Reimbursement of Expenses:
To Holding Company

Ma nagerial Rem uneration
Others

To lFCl Financial Services Limited

66,897,267
204,250,000
247,722,602

23,424,659

3,483,862
1,,428,575

50,75L

50,000,000
50,000,000

200,000,000
200,000,000

100,000,000
100,000,000

82,945,203
240,248,287
256,296,229

66,897,26L

4,29L,233

2,663,O74

431-,507

L7,7s9,495
L7,759,495

85,190
199,910

285,100

2,142,593
2,020,4L0

196,465
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To HARDICON Limited
To NITCON Limited

Managing Directors' Remuneration
Remuneration Paid to Key Management personnel

Mr. Lalit Ba nsal
Mr. Rajiv L. Jha
Mr. Ankur Agarwal

Balance Recoverable / (Payable) at year end:
To Holding Company
To HARDICON Limited
From lFCl Financial Services Limiteo

t22,707
2L4,L65

L,225,1O5
656,298

84,443

(3o2,3221

L,420,983

28,090

1 ?qA Onq

1,035,S5;
1.,471,,468

(s90,s38)
(28,090)

t43,7 95

35.

34. Lease

office Premises are on operating lease with tenor upto 12 months and renewable on such terms and
conditions as may be mutually agreed between the company and the Lessor. Lease rentals paid are charged
as rent in Statement of profit and Loss.

Earnings Per Share
Particu la rs Year Ended

31.03.2015
Year Ended
31.03.2014

Net Protit/(Loss) as per Statement of profit and Loss (Rs.)

Net Profit/(Loss) for Equity Shareholders for Basic EpS (Rs.)

Net Profit/(Loss) for Equity Shareholders for Diluted EpS (Rs.)

(s9s,611,832)
(s9s,611,832)
(59s,611,832 )

(35s,392,990)
(3ss,392,990)
(3ss,392,990)

wergnreo Average no. ot Equity Shares for Basic EpS
Add: Equity shares for conversion of preferences shares (CCCPS)
Weighted Average no. of Equity Shares for Diluted EpS

79,357,700
7s,038,000

t54,395,700

79,3s7 ,700

79,351 ,7O0
Basic Earnings per Share (Face Value - Rs. 10 per share) (Rs.)
Diluted Earnings per Share (Face Value - Rs. 10 per share) (Rs.)

(7. s 1)
(3.86)

(4.48)
(4.48)

36, Expenditure in Foreign Currency:

Particulars

@
Membership Fee and Subscription
lmport Factor Commission
Others

Fee

in Rs

Year Ended
31.03.2015

Year Ended
31.03.2014

525,300
4,582,779

4?0,905

642,750
4 )qa qna

473,904

37. Employees Benefits

i) Defined Contribution plan:

The Company has recognized
(previous year Rs. 3,343,967)
and Loss.

Provident Fund and Family
under defined contribution

Pension Schemes
plan as an expense

contribution Rs. 2,900,344
in the Statement of profit



IFCI FACTORS TIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

ii) Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has defined benefit plans in respect of gratuity and leave encashment. Valuation in

respect of gratuity and leave encashment has been carried out by an independent actuary, as at the

Balance sheet date on Project Unit Credit method.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit/ expenses recognized in the Statement of
profit and Loss, the funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans:

benefitsa) Principal Assumptions used in determini and -em nt benetrts are:

Actuarial Assumptions Year Ended

31.03.2015

Year Ended

3L.O3.2074

Discounting Rate

Future Salary Increase

Retirement aBe

Mortality Rate

Ages
- Upto 30 Years
- From 31 to 44 years

- Above 44 years

8.50%
6.O0%

58 Years

Lrc (1994-96)

duly modified
withdrawal rate (%)

3

z
1

8.50%
6.O0%

58 Years

Lrc (1994-96)

duly modified
wlthdrawal rate (%)

3

2

1

b) Chanses in the Present Value of Obligation: Amount in Rs

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

31.03.2015 3r.o3.2074 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

a) Present value of obliSation as at beginning of
the year

b) Interest cost
c) Past Service cost
d) Cu rrent Service cost

e) Benefits paid

f) Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation
g) Present value of obliSation as at end of the
year

2,653,t67

aoo o^r-

(183,496)
(424,3L3't

2,870,738

L,636,s7L

730,926-

7 45,272
(618,078)

758,536
2,653,167

3,403,817

?qo ?l q.

7lr',8;
(980,028)

(9s,101)

3,361,852

3,814,833

305,187

r,034,t75
(1-,659,247 )

(91,131)

3,403,8t7

alue of Plac air V Plan assets:

Particulars G ratuity Leave Encashment

31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

a) Fair Value of Plan Assets as at beginning of
the year

b) Expected return
c) Past Service cost

d) Co ntribution
e) Benefits paid

f) Fair Value of Plan Assets as at end of the year

g) Funded status 12,870,738 {3,361,8s2 I2 /!n? Q17l



IFCI FACTORS TIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Disclosure in terms of Notification No. DNBR (PD) CC. No. O02/O3.t0.00L12014-15 dated November 10,2014
issued by Reserve Bank of India are as under:

A. Capital:

38.

d) Actuarial gair

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
31.03.201s 31.03.2014 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

a) Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year-Obligation
b) Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year-Plan assets

clActuarial {gain)/ loss recognized in the year

(424,3!3)

(424,313

758,536

758,536

(9s,101)

(9s,101)

(91,131)

(91,131

e) Amounts to be in the Balance Sheet:
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

a) Present value of obligation as at end of the
year
b) Fair Value of Plan Assets as at end of the year

c) Funded status
d) Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

2,870,738

\2,870,738)
12,870,7381

2,6s3,L67

(2,6s3,!67l,
(2,6s3,L671

3,361,8s2

(3,361,8s2)
(3,361,8s2)

3,403,8r7

(3,403,817)
(3,403,817)

in the statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
r'l a"rrant qarvi.a .^ct
h\ Pa<i <an/i.a .n<t

c) Interest cost
d) Return on the plan assets

e) Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the
year

f) Expenses/(lncome) recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

599,861

225,519

l4z4,3t3l

40L,067

7 45,2L2

r30,926-

758,536

r,634,67 4

743,839

289,325

(9s,101)

938,063

L,O34,775

305,187

(91,131)

't-,248,23r

Rs. ln crores
Items As at

31.03.2015
As at

31.03.2014

cRAR (%)

CRAR-TierlCapital(%)
CRAR - Tier ll Capital (%)

Amount of subordinate debt raised as Tier-ll capital
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments
% of Perpetual Debt to Tier I Capital (ex-Perpetual debt)

16.L)o/o

1,4.20%

1-.90%

Nil

Nil

\7 .650/o

20.90%
14.30%
6.6Qo/o

Nil

Nil

23.28%



IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2015

B. lnvestments:

Value of Investment

Gross Value of Investments

(a) ln lndia 44,555,246 44,555,246

(b) outside India,

Provisions for Depreciation

(4, ln lndia 126,283 126,283

(b) outside India,

Net Value of lnvestments

(a) In India 4,4428,963 4,4428,963

(b) Outside Ind ia.

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

(i) Opening balance 726,283

(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year 126,283

{iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during

the year

(iv) Closing balance 126,283 126,283

C. Details of Financial Assets sold to securitisation / R€construction CompanvforAsset Reconstruction:
Particulars As at

31.03.2015
As at

31.03.2014

i) No. of accounts Nil Nil

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts
sold to SC / RC

Nil Nil

(iii) Aggregate consideration Nil Nil
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of
accounts transferred in earlier vears

Nil Nil

(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value Nil Nil

D. Details of ment transactions undertaken:
Particulars As at

31.03.2015
As at

31.03.2014
(i) No. of accounts Nil Nil

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold Nil Nil

(iii) Aggregate consideration Nil Nil

(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of
accounts transferred in earlier vears

Nil Nil

(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value Nil Nil



IFCI FACTORS TIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

E. Details of No Financial Assets Purchased:
Particu lars As at

31.03.2015
As at

31.03.2014
(i)(a) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil

(i)(b) Aeeregate outstand ing Nil Nil
(ii)(a)Of these, num ber of accounts restructured during the vear Nil Nil

(ii)(b) Aegregate outsta nding Nil Nil

F. Details of rerformins Financial Assets Sold:

Particulars As at
31.03.2015

As at
3L.03.2014

(i) No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
(ii) Aggregate outsta nding Nil Nil
(iii)Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil

G, Asset [iability Management Maturity Pattern of Assets and liabilities:
in Crore

1 day
to

30l3t
days

Over 1

month
to2

months

Over 2
months

to3
months

Over 3
months

to6
months

Over 5
months

to1
year

Over
I

year
to3

years

Over
3

years

to5
years

Over
5

Years

Total

Iiabilities:
Borrowings from Banks

Market Borrowings
1 L 1 4 220

100

23

2L 2L 183

250

325

Total
(Previous Year)

L

(1)
1

(\z\ (4)
!20

(24s\ (12e)
2L

(tz4l
183

(183)
575

(6s8)

Assets:
Advances
lnvestments

93 tzL 89 118 72 95 94 138

4

820

4

Total
(Previous Year)

93
(130)

Lzl
(1s6)

89
(138 )

118
(8s)

72
(88 )

95

ts 1)

94
(201)

742
(41)

824
(8e0)

to Real Estate Sector: Amount in Rs

Category As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

Direct exposure

{i} Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential
property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or
that is rented; (lndividual housing loans up to Rs.15 lakh

may be shown separatelv)
(ii) Commercial Real Estate

v



IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2015

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real
estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
Warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and
construction, etc.). Exposure would also include
non-fund based (N FB) limits;

738,663,724 454,800,000

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and
other securitized exoosures -

Residential,

B Commercial Real Estate.
b) indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).

l. Exposure to Capital Market:

Amount in Rs.

Particulars As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

(i) Direct investments in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus
of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt

25,355,246 25,355,246

(ii) Advances against shares/bonds/debenture or other securities or
on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including

lPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and

units ofequity oriented mutual funds

Nil Nil

(iii) Advances for any other purpose where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equitv oriented
mutual funds are taken as primary securities

452,555,54I 562,620,328

(iv) Advances for any other purpose to the extent secured bV the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debenture or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
does not fullv cover the advances.

230,406,997 346,899,s92

(v) Secured and unsecured advances to the stockbrokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers.

Nil Nil

(vi) Loan sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promote/s contribution to the equity of new companies

Nil Nit

t



IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2015

J. Details of Single Borrower Limit / Group Borrower Limited exceeded by the Company:
During the year, the Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limit in respect of fresh
sanctions. However, in the few cases as stated below, sanction limit/outstanding balance were exceeded
the prudential exposure limit in respect of cases sanctioned in earlier years:

Certificated of Registration no. as issued by Reserve Bank of India - B-14.01248

No penalty has been imposed by RBI and any other regulators during the year.

Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:M.

K.

L.

in anticipation of raising resources.

{vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues- Nil Nil

(viii) All exposure to Venture Capital Funds both registered and

unregistered)

Nil NiI

Total exposure to capital market 708,t17 ,784 934,475,L67

Rs. ln Crore

Parti€ulars Sanctioned [imit Outstanding Balance

Synergies Castings Ltd. 22.00 22.27

Kenersys India Pvt Ltd. 20.00

Pratibha Ind ustries Ltd. 20.00 10.16

Lloyd Electric Engineering Ltd. 20.00 3.20

Amar Remedies 19.00 18.00

Rating Agency CARE Ratings

I nstruments/Facilities As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

Long Term bank facilities * CARE A- (SO) (Single A Structured

Obligation)

CARE A - (SO) (Single A

Structured Obligation)

Short Term bank facilities* CARE 41 {5O) ((A One (Structured

Obligation))

CARE 41 (so) ((A one
(Structu red Obligation))

Long Term bank facilities

(Sta ndalone)

CARE BBB (Triple B) CARE BBB+ (Triple B Plus)

Short Term Bank Facilities

(Standalone)

CAREA3(AThree) CARE 42+ ( A Two Plus)

Long Term Non-Convertible

Debentures

CARE A- (Single A Minus) CARE BBB+ (Triple B Plus)

Commercial Paper (CP) * CARE A1 (SO) ((A One) (Structured

Obligation))

CARE A1 (So) ((A one)

(Structured Obligation))
*Structured Obligation ----> Backed by Letter of Comfort from lFCl Limited.

Rating Agency Brickwork Ratings
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2015

N. Provisions and Contingencies:
(Amount in Rs)

O. Draw Down from Reserves:

P. Concentration ofAdvances, Exposures and NPAs:

Concentration of NPAs

(Amount in Rs. crore)

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 65.7 6

I nstruments/Facilities As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

Secured Non-Convertible

Debentures

BWR A- : Pronounced BWR A Minus

(Outlook Stable)

BWR A: Pronounced BWR A

(Outlook Stable)

Unsecured Non-Convertible

Debentures

BWR A- : Pronounced BWR A Minus

(Outlook Stable)

BWR A : Pronounced BWR A

(Outlook Stable)

Break up of "Provisions and Contingencies" shown under the head

Expenditure in Profit and loss account

As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

Provisions for deoreciation on Investment t26,283
Provisions towards NPA 858,736,388 638,672,395

Provision made towards Income tax 7,322,968 53,537 ,L92
Provision for Standard Assets 18,212,605 2,4t4,a70

Particulars As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

Depreciation 988,385

Securities Premium 8,911,350 8,79I,260

Concentration of Advances

(Amount in Rs. crore)

TotalAdvances to twenty largest borrowers 330.3 r.

Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC 40.29%

Concentration of Exposures

(Amount in Rs. crore)

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 359.50

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the
NBFC on borrowers / customers

29.84%



IFCI FACTORS IIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

d) Sector-wise NPAs:

e) Movement of NPA:
Amount in Rs. crore

Particulars
As at

31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

(i) Net NPAS to Net Advances (%) 10.78% 2Q.O8%

(ii) Movement of NPAS (Gross)

(a) Opening ba lance 237.74 49.41,

{b) Additions d uring the year 52.r2 213.38

(c) Red uctio ns/write-offs during the year (s8.10) (2s.os)

(d) Closing ba la nce 237.75 237 .7 4

(iii) Movement of Net NPAS

(a) Opening balance 162.95 38.49

(b)

(c)

Additions during the yea r {66.e0) 143.90

Reductions/write-offs d uring the year 124.9sl lLg.44],

(d) Closing bala nce 71.o9 1-62.95

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)

(a) Opening balance 74.79 LQ.92

(b) Provisions made during the year 719.02 69.48

(c) Write-off / write-back of excess provisions (33.1s ) (s.61)

(d) Closing bala nce 160.66 74.79

39. Disclosure in terms of Paragraph 13 of Prudential Norms as per Notification No.DNBS.193 DG (VL)-2007

dated February 22, 2007 issued by Reserve Bank of India.
(A) Loans and advances availed, inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

nt in Rs

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

Outstanding Overdue Outstanding I Overdue

a ) Debentures/ Bonds
- Secured
- U nsecured

h\ noforroi l^rcrlit<

c) Term Loans (including demand loan)

1,051,890,139
1 a)\ 7t7 91q

2,407,300,O33

t,o8L,046,7 39

1,,351,,261,,644

4,245,867,883

Amount in Rs. Crore

Sl. No. Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total

Advances in that Sector

1 Agriculture & allied activities

2 MSM E 13.95

3 Corporate borrowers 2t7 .80

4 Services

5 Unsecured oersonal loans

6 Auto loans



IFCI FACTORS TIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
e) Commercial Paper

Other Loans (Cash Credit and Overdraft 1,132,196,655

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any Financial Institution or Bank.

B) Break uD of Loans and Advances including Bills Receiva

Particular As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

a. secured
b. Unsecu red

L,980,7L6,456
7,777,224,879

2,t30,497,509
8,047 ,905,877

I Otal 9,757,941,275 1,0178,803,386

Break uo of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards loan activities:

Particular As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :

(a) FinancialLease
(b) Operating lease

Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets
Other loans counting towards AFC activities:
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

5.

Break uo of Investments:

Particular As at
31.03.2015

As at
31.03.2014

Current lnvestment
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares:Equity
: Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) GovernmentSecurities
(v) Other
Unquoted:
(i) Shares: Equity

:Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) GovernmentSecurities
(v) Other

19,200,000 19,200,000

Long Term lnvestment
Quoted:
(i) Shares: Equity

: Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds

25,228,963 25,228,963-



(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) GovernmentSecurities
(v) Other

Unquoted:
(i) Shares: Equity

: Preference
(ii) Debentu res and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) GovernmentSecurities

Other

IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

NOTE5 TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2015

(F) lnvestor group wise classification of all investment (current and long term) in shares and securities (both

E) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed (includins contractual oblisations):
Pa rticu la rs Amount net of Provisions

Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties 1 oQn '71A /t <4 6 ,1-64 ,616 ,036 8,1_45,332,492
Total 7,980,7 16,456 6,r.64,616,036 8,L45,332,492
(Previous Year) 2,130,897,sog 7,300,033,482 9,430,930,991

uoted and

Category Market Value /
Break up of fair
value of NAV

Book Value (Net
of provisions)

L. Related Parties
(a) Subsid ia ries
(b) Companies in same group
(c) Other related parties

Other than related parties
(previous year)

35,032,923
(45,507,184\

44,428,963

144,428,963\

G) Other Information:
Particulars As at

31.03.2015
As at

31.03.2014
Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties
(b) Other than Related parties 2,3r7,543,273 2,377,365,80s

4. Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties
(b) Other than Related Parties 7 to,934,490 1, ,629 ,493 ,470

5. Assets acquired in satisfagtion ofdebts

U
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

41, Monitoring of Fraud
a. ln terms of RBI circular No. DNBS.PD.CC. No. 256 /03.10.042 / 201.L-I2 dated March 02,20L2, Ihe

Company has identified and reported to Reserve Bank of India four fraud accounts amounting to Rs.

45.67 crore during the current year (Previous year - Rs. 23.05 crore ).

b. Aoart from above in 15 suspected fraud cases out of which in 14 cases criminal complaints have been

filed by the company against borrower companies and other related persons at various police

authorities for detection of frauds. These cases shall be reported to R8l on detection of fraud lf any.

42. Advances do not include write-off cases against which legal proceedings in the nature of criminal and / or

civil or pending. Legal expenses on these cases are being incurred and debited to profit & Loss account.

43. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary.

As per our audit report of even date attached

For Chandiwala Virmani & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.

(Bharat Bhushan)
Pa rtner
Membership No. 087365

Date: April 30, 2015
Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

tlf*
(sikaslfrlhti Roy)

Managing Director
DtN - 02171876

@# "^,)

I .u,lW
Director

DtN- 06777363

(Lalit Bansal)
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